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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's Finance Committee hearing.  My

          4  name is David Weprin.  I Chair the Finance

          5  Committee.  Council Member Lew Fidler gets extra

          6  credit for being here on time, and he's here from

          7  Brooklyn, New York.  We have a number of members

          8  that are downstairs that are about to come up.  So

          9  they'll be up momentarily.

         10                 Today we will be conducting an

         11  oversight hearing on the City's Off-Track Betting

         12  Corporation, and its current financial condition.

         13  New York City OTB is the largest legal gambling

         14  operation in the country.  I'll repeat that.  New

         15  York City OTB is the largest legal gambling

         16  operation in the country.  Yet according to OTB's

         17  monthly cast projections, OTB will run out of

         18  unrestricted cash by June of 2008, and is predicting

         19  losses until at least 2013 based on its own

         20  financial plan projections.

         21                 The City, which is supposed to get

         22  profits from OTB, has not received any residual

         23  profits since Fiscal Year 2003, except for a minimal

         24  amount in 2004, and is not expected to see any

         25  profits for as far as the financial plan can see.

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 The purpose of today's hearing is to

          3  determine what actions have contributed to OTB's

          4  financial predicament, to ascertain what measures,

          5  if any, have been taken by OTB to avoid insolvency,

          6  and hopefully to come up with some recommendations

          7  that will keep OTB afloat while at the same time

          8  ensuring the job security of almost 1,700 employees.

          9                 Ironically, OTB still brings in about

         10  $1 billion dollars in handle annually, and generates

         11  an annual operating profit of around $130 million

         12  dollars.  However, State legislative mandates have

         13  required New York City OTB to make substantial

         14  contributions to both the racing industry and the

         15  State of New York.  Since 2001, the State has

         16  increased these amounts so that currently 40 percent

         17  of all of New York City OTB's revenues go directly

         18  to the racing industry.  Most importantly, these

         19  payments are driven by handle, or gross revenue, and

         20  not based on OTB's net profits so that there is no

         21  incentive to the State, or the racing industry for

         22  New York City OTB to generate a profit.

         23                 In the last three years, it is my

         24  understanding that New York City OTB has desperately

         25  tried to contain operating costs by cutting back on
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          2  overall employment, reducing some of its lease space

          3  and cutting management by 15 percent.  In fact, just

          4  last year, the Boston Consulting Group was hired to

          5  provide a comprehensive assessment of OTB's business

          6  model and operations and come up with

          7  recommendations and suggestions for OTB's survival.

          8                 In April 2007, the Boston Consulting

          9  Group issued its report.  Most notably, they too

         10  recognized the significant burden the State's

         11  regulatory scheme has imposed on New York City OTB,

         12  and recommends changes in Albany to decrease the

         13  State- imposed statutory distributions.

         14                 In addition, the report suggests a

         15  number of ways OTB can increase its revenue stream,

         16  including expanding into restaurants and bars,

         17  redirecting some of the video lottery terminal

         18  revenues from harness tracks, and making OTB parlors

         19  more attractive and inviting.

         20                 We look forward to hearing from the

         21  consultants regarding this report and on their

         22  specific recommendations on how to make New York

         23  City OTB financially solvent.

         24                 In light of OTB's current financial

         25  predicament, I'm extremely concerned about the
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          2  almost 1,700 employees, some of whom are in the

          3  Committee room today, who work for OTB and whose

          4  jobs would be at risk if OTB fails.  I hope that

          5  this City, including the Mayor and the City Council,

          6  does everything it can to ensure that OTB remains

          7  financially solvent and that these employees can

          8  remain at their jobs.  Therefore, I am planning to

          9  introduce a resolution which would ask the State to

         10  review the current statutory distribution formula

         11  and to see what the State can do to minimize some of

         12  the financial burden on New York City OTB as a

         13  result of these legislatively mandated

         14  distributions.

         15                 We've been joined by a number of my

         16  colleagues.  We have Council Member Robert Jackson

         17  from Manhattan, Council Member Albert Vann from

         18  Brooklyn, Council Member Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn

         19  and Council Member Vincent Gentile from Brooklyn.

         20                 We will now hear from our Deputy

         21  Mayor for Finance and Economic Development Dan

         22  Doctoroff along with the President of New York City

         23  OTB Ray Casey.  Gentlemen.

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Thank you

         25  very much, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council.  I
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          2  wish I could say it's a pleasure to be here, but

          3  despite your company, the circumstances that bring

          4  us here today are anything but pleasurable because

          5  indeed, Mr. Chairman, as you indicated in your

          6  opening remarks, which in fact I think brilliantly

          7  described the situation and concisely described the

          8  situation.  The situation is, in fact, quite dire.

          9  So I'm not going to repeat the general overview that

         10  you gave because I think it would simply be

         11  redundant.  Instead, what I'd like to do before

         12  turning it over to Mr. Casey is to describe some of

         13  the facts of the financial situation of OTB, and I

         14  apologize for those on the right side of the room

         15  who will have to crane their necks to take a look at

         16  the screen, but I think there is some valuable

         17  information there that bears looking at.  So let me

         18  launch right into it.

         19                 This is what Mayor Bloomberg just a

         20  few weeks ago, and I'll read it out loud.  I have

         21  always had concerns about the participation of City

         22  government in gambling.  Making matters worse, it is

         23  entirely unacceptable for the City to risk losing

         24  money on such a questionable endeavor.  Years of

         25  State legislative schemes that favored racing
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          2  interests at the expense of New York City OTB have

          3  forced the City into a financially untenable

          4  situation in which it is.  Asked to subsidize the

          5  State racing industry at taxpayer expense.

          6                 The City has spent extensive amounts

          7  of time evaluating OTB and its financial prospects,

          8  and have come to a conclusion that unless a viable

          9  solution is reached the City will not subsidize OTB

         10  in insolvent business  --  let me repeat  --  in

         11  insolvent business when it reaches a cash negative

         12  position mid next year.

         13                 Now let's talk a little bit about its

         14  financial position.  Some people will tell you that

         15  OTB has not been well managed.  That is simply not

         16  the case.  In the face of a completely constant

         17  environment to declining environment for racing

         18  nationally and in this State, OTB has actually held

         19  its financial performance constant.  In fact, if you

         20  look here on the second line what you can see

         21  handle, which is total wages accepted by OTB, have

         22  essentially remained the same over the course of the

         23  last five or six years.  That is very consistent

         24  with national trends.

         25                 Revenue is the share of that handle
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          2  that OTB gets to keep, and as you can see, it too

          3  has remained roughly constant over that same period.

          4    In fact, it's gone up slightly in the last couple

          5  of years.  Now it's gone up, in part, despite the

          6  fact that there have been significantly increasing

          7  costs for wages, and especially benefits because the

          8  senior management has done a good job of reducing

          9  senior staff by 15 percent.  It's closed six

         10  locations, and reduced operating hours at other

         11  locations as costs cutting measures.  As a result,

         12  the operating profit of OTB has remained relatively

         13  constant over that entire period.

         14                 Be very clear here.  OTB on an

         15  operating basis is a highly profitable entity.  It

         16  only spends roughly 50 percent of the revenues that

         17  it takes in.  There are very, very few businesses in

         18  America, or anywhere, that earn an operating margin

         19  of 50 percent.

         20  So let's go on.

         21                 What's the problem?  The problem is

         22  that the Legislature has imposed a series of

         23  payments to the racing industry, and to the State

         24  itself.  Most of those payments significantly are

         25  based on the percentage of handle, of total revenue
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          2  taken in, not on the basis of profits.

          3                 Now let's look at what's actually

          4  happened there. Starting in 2001, there was $131

          5  million dollars of State actions that have increased

          6  the burden.  Since 2001, however, there have been a

          7  series of additional charges that have been imposed.

          8    In 2001, the State Racing and Wagering Board

          9  reduced the amount that OTB can charge customers for

         10  NYRA wagers, reducing annual revenues by $4.7

         11  million.

         12                 In 2003, the State Legislature

         13  imposed a regulatory fee to support the budget of

         14  the State Racing and Wagering Board of $4 million

         15  dollars a year.  Also in 2003, the State Legislature

         16  instituted a hold harmless provision, which

         17  essentially requires OTB to pay the regional harness

         18  tracks no less than the amount that they were paid

         19  in 2002 costing New York City OTB about $4 million

         20  dollars a year.

         21                 In 2005, that regulatory fee that

         22  supports the budget of the Racing and Wagering Board

         23  was increased from $4 million to $5 million.  The

         24  total impact of all of those actions was $13.7

         25  million dollars.
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          2                 Now what does that mean for OTB?

          3  Let's walk through where we are.  Remember handle is

          4  roughly a billion dollars. Handle is the amount of

          5  money taken in from bets.  The revenue, the portion

          6  that OTB actually gets to keep is $256 million.

          7  This is for Fiscal Year 2007.  Operating expenses,

          8  as I mentioned, are roughly half of the revenues,

          9  $127 million dollars, leaving a profit of $129

         10  million.  Total distributions to the racing

         11  industry, to the State, and also to the City,

         12  totalled in 2007 $138 million dollars.  That leaves

         13  a deficit of $9 million dollars.

         14                 Any business person, anybody with any

         15  common sense will tell that making distributions in

         16  excess of profits does not make any business sense.

         17  What happens when OTB is stripped of all of its cash

         18    --  and by the way, as we'll see in a moment  --

         19  that situation is only getting worse.  OTB cannot

         20  invest the cash and make the investments necessary

         21  to increase handle and increase profits.

         22                 Let's go on.  On this chart, what you

         23  have is it shows you how over the last several

         24  years, even after distributions, we've gone from OTB

         25  having a surplus to a deficit. You can see here in
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          2  Fiscal Year 2002 there was an operating profit of

          3  $132 million, and total distributions of $130

          4  million, leaving a small amount, but at least it was

          5  positive of $2 million dollars. Over the course of

          6  time, as those distributions increase, because many

          7  of them were in 2003, that number went to a deficit.

          8                 In 2004, for example, there was

          9  operating profit of $128 million, and distributions

         10  of $138 million, leaving a deficit of roughly $10

         11  million.

         12                 For Fiscal Year 2007, operating

         13  profits were offset, as I mentioned earlier, by

         14  total distributions of $138 million, leaving a

         15  deficit of $9 million dollars.

         16                 We believe, and you'll hear from

         17  Boston Consulting Group as well, that without some

         18  form of legislative changes this reality not only

         19  will it not change, it will only deteriorate.

         20                 Here you see quite graphically what's

         21  happened over a very long period of time with

         22  respect to this distributions. Look at the red line

         23  here.  The red line is actually the amount of money

         24  paid to the racing industry out of OTB.  Back in

         25  1971, '72, '73, it was small, $10 million or less.
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          2  You see what's happened. By 2007, 74 percent of all

          3  distributions flowed to the racing industry.

          4                 Now OTB's original mission was both

          5  to provide a legal gambling alternative, and to

          6  provide income to the local governments.  Let's see

          7  what's happened to the distributions that the local

          8  government that we all care about, New York City.

          9  Look what's happened to those distributions.  There

         10  represented by the blue line.  By 1975, that number

         11  had hit almost $60 million dollars a year.  By 1981,

         12  it was $65 million dollars a year.  Well what's

         13  happened since is that red line has increased.  The

         14  blue line has fallen, and fallen, and fallen, and

         15  fallen.

         16                 To put it a different way, in 1976,

         17  New York City received 56 percent of all

         18  distributions out of OTB, while the racing industry

         19  received only 28 percent.  In 2007, New York City

         20  received 15 percent of all distributions, while the

         21  industry received 74 percent.  Clearly, State

         22  mandated payments have subverted OTB's original

         23  mission.

         24                 Now where have those legislatively

         25  imposed payments actually gone?  Well the bulk of
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          2  them have actually gone to NYRA, the New York Racing

          3  Association, an organization that nobody would agree

          4  is a paragon of management efficiency.

          5                 For Fiscal Year 2007, $53 million

          6  dollars went to NYRA.  It went to NYRA for

          7  essentially just a subsidy.  It went to NYRA to pay

          8  for their signal, which charges much more than other

          9  tracks around the country.  It even went to NYRA as

         10  a commission on bets taken from out- of- state

         11  tracks.

         12                 Other New York State tracks also

         13  benefit from OTB. They benefit because we have to

         14  purchase their signal, which is not completely

         15  unfair, but they also get a share of distributions

         16  on out- of- state bets, bets that are placed for

         17  out- of- state racing in New York.

         18                 They pay non- New York State tracks

         19  as well for their signal, and then there's a little

         20  category of $8 million dollars a year that gets paid

         21  out of OTB's money to something called breeding

         22  funds.

         23                 Out of the $73 million dollars of

         24  distributions that are paid to New York State race

         25  tracks, approximately $37 million dollars goes to
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          2  fund prize money for the winners.  Think about that.

          3    That's $37 million dollars that is not being spent

          4  on education, or on healthcare, or on crime

          5  prevention, or on parks, or on anything else we

          6  collectively may choose to spend it on.  It is being

          7  paid to owners of horses for prize money.

          8                 I want to talk for just a minute here

          9  about what I referred to before, OTB's operating

         10  practices.  As I said, the management led by Ray

         11  Casey has done a very effective job under difficult

         12  circumstances reducing its senior staff by 15

         13  percent, closing locations, reducing operating

         14  hours.  In fact, if you actually look at OTB's

         15  expenses since 2002 they have increased at only 1.3

         16  percent per year.  That despite the fact that it's a

         17  heavily personnel intensive business, and we all

         18  know that not only have wages gone up, but we live

         19  in an era of rapidly rising benefit costs.  So to

         20  only increase costs by 1.3 percent is actually a

         21  really notable achievement.

         22                 Some people will tell you hey let's

         23  look at OTB in Nassau County.  OTB in Nassau County

         24  it actually makes money.  So why can't you make more

         25  money after distributions here in New York City?
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          2  Well we're not Nassau County.  Let me just tell you

          3  we pay our workers better here in New York City.

          4  Our workers are full time union employees.  In

          5  Nassau County, they're largely part- time employees.

          6    If we paid our employees at the same rates, and

          7  paid them the same percentage of handle, or

          8  operating profit, that they do in Nassau County, we

          9  could have saved $23.6 million.  We can't do that.

         10  We have labor agreements, and we have obligations to

         11  our employees.

         12                 Rent in New York City is much higher

         13  than it is in Nassau County.  If we paid the same

         14  rent as they do in Nassau County, we would have

         15  saved another $13.1 million.  We can't do anything

         16  about that.  Our markets here are our markets.

         17  Their markets are their markets.

         18                 We have been a very well run

         19  operation.  In the face of this cash crisis, Ray

         20  Casey and his team have done a good job of

         21  stretching out payables, particularly to the racing

         22  industry.  The amount that we owe the racing

         23  industry has increased from $17 million to $35

         24  million, but we are running out of room.  We have no

         25  more tricks, and therefore, the day of reckoning is
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          2  coming, and you can see that right here.

          3                 The unrestricted cash, the money that

          4  we can spend on whatever we want that isn't

          5  constrained because it's somebody else's, or we're

          6  holding it for someone, as you can see, on July of

          7  this year, stood at roughly $19 million dollars.  By

          8  next June the amount of cash that OTB is expected to

          9  have will be negative.  We will run out of money by

         10  the end of the current fiscal year.

         11                 Why does this number decrease?

         12  Because we are going to have to make a pension

         13  payment in June of $6.4 million.  Wages and benefits

         14  continue to increase.  Handle and revenue are

         15  actually flattening.  They're going down a bit based

         16  on the first four months of the year, and that by

         17  increasing their accounts payable by over $7 million

         18  in Fiscal Year 2007, they avoided cash losses that

         19  they cannot avoid this year.  As a result, our

         20  projection currently, and these are only projections

         21  but they won't change a whole lot, is that OTB will

         22  end Fiscal Year '08 with a cash shortfall of

         23  $358,000 dollars.

         24                 There are no more tricks in the bag.

         25  Once we reach that point, OTB will not have enough

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  money to pay its bills.

          3                 What can we do about it?  Well the

          4  first thing we can't do is just have short term

          5  measures because this situation is only getting

          6  worse.  Let me talk a little bit about what we see

          7  over the course of the next four or five years.  The

          8  blue line is the distribution, the statutory

          9  distributions to New York City that we get.  That's

         10  been roughly $15 million dollars a year, and will

         11  stay roughly at that level.

         12                 On the other hand, the green line is

         13  what New York City is actually going to have to put

         14  in, in order to keep the business going, something

         15  we have said we will not do.  But look at how that

         16  changes over time.  For Fiscal Year 2008, I

         17  mentioned that number was $358,000.  It doesn't show

         18  up here because it's so small, but look what happens

         19  in 2009.  To keep it going, we actually have to put

         20  in about a couple million.  In 2010, we have to put

         21  in more than $5 million.  In 2011, this is after any

         22  distributions New York City receives, the number

         23  would simply continue to grow.

         24                 So we are at a crisis.  A crisis that

         25  we alone do not have the power to solve.  This
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          2  entity is insolvent.  But for the stretching of

          3  payables, really this entity has been insolvent

          4  since 2006.

          5                 Speaking for the Administration, the

          6  City is not interested in throwing money into an

          7  unrecoverable situation.  The City for whom OTB was

          8  largely established to provide for the health and

          9  welfare of its citizens only receives today 15

         10  percent of total distributions yet we are stuck at

         11  the bottom of the barrel bearing all of the risk

         12  while everybody else continues to take their money

         13  out.

         14                 Continuing to defer the distribution

         15  of our own distributions, that's course that we do

         16  intend to pursue, we'd still have to give more money

         17  to OTB than it would receive in distributions as

         18  early as 2009.  That means the City would be

         19  financially worse off than if OTB did not exist.

         20                 Now I just want to make one final

         21  point.  We don't believe that the distribution

         22  formula, and simply adjusting it, will solve the

         23  problem.  Why?  Because just changing the

         24  distribution formulas by the Legislature in Albany

         25  can be just a temporary fix.  As we've seen time
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          2  after time over the last several decades, it's been

          3  changed, and changed to the City's detriment. If

          4  you're going to have a sustainable business, you

          5  have to have predictability, and you have to have

          6  the confidence that the investments that you make

          7  today to improve the business will pay off.  We do

          8  not have that certainty.

          9                 Instead, what needs to happen, and

         10  you'll hear much more about this from Boston

         11  Consulting Group, is that there needs to be a

         12  fundamental alignment between the product, the

         13  franchise, the racing industry, and its

         14  distribution, its most important distribution, which

         15  is OTB.  That can be accomplished in a number of

         16  ways.  For one, making the percentage of

         17  distributions be based not on handle, but based on

         18  profits.  So everyone has the same incentive to

         19  actually try and fix this business and think about

         20  it in a comprehensive way.

         21                 So that ends my presentation.  I just

         22  want to repeat we are at a crisis situation.  It is

         23  not of OTB's making.  That instead we've had

         24  distributions imposed on us, and that unless we

         25  fundamentally realign this industry, we will do
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          2  nothing but temporarily postpone the day of

          3  reckoning.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Doctoroff.  We've been joined by a number of my

          6  colleagues since the last round of introductions.

          7  We have Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens,

          8  Council Member Helen Sears from Queens, Council

          9  Member Peter Vallone, Jr. From Queens, Council

         10  Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx, Council Member

         11  David Yassky from Brooklyn, Council Member Gale

         12  Brewer from Manhattan, and Council Member Alan

         13  Gerson from Manhattan.

         14                 I have to say, Mr. Doctoroff, that

         15  I'm in total agreement with everything that you've

         16  said, and I've making this argument repeatedly of

         17  the absurdity of the way the State and the racing

         18  tracks have been basically milking New York City

         19  OTB's profits which is probably the best run and

         20  most profitable of all the OTB's, and certainly, we

         21  should not be in a position to subsidize the State

         22  racing industry, and the tracks, and the State.

         23                 Just to highlight the absurdity, even

         24  when Yonkers Raceway was closed, the harness tracks,

         25  when they were installing video lottery terminals
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          2  for about a year  --  they were literally closed for

          3  a year  --  New York City OTB was still making, I

          4  believe, in excess of $400,000 in payments to

          5  Yonkers during that period of time when they were

          6  not operating.

          7                 So there's no question I'm planning

          8  on introducing a resolution hopefully to coincide

          9  with Albany coming back into session in January to

         10  really get everybody together before we hit this

         11  crisis situation that you correctly referred to,

         12  which we'll come close to around the same time of

         13  our City budget because there's no question that New

         14  York City should not be in the position of

         15  subsidizing the whole State, and New York City OTB

         16  should not be in the position of subsidizing the

         17  entire racing industry.

         18                 So one of the main things that I've

         19  been calling for is exactly what you just called

         20  for.  It's to make the distributions not based on

         21  the handle, or the gross amount, but certainly on

         22  the net profit.  I look forward to working with you

         23  on strategy how to approach Albany, how to deal with

         24  Albany, because if New York City OTB goes out of

         25  business and we lose those 1,700 or so jobs as well
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          2  as all the other ancillary revenue for the City,

          3  it's not going to help the State, it's not going to

          4  help the race tracks or NYRA, and I certainly think

          5  it's in their interests as well to come to the table

          6  and negotiate in good faith with the City and New

          7  York City OTB.

          8                 I going to just touch on a couple of

          9  question since we went into this at length.  Mr.

         10  Casey, did you want to make a statement.

         11                 MR. CASEY: I have a prepared

         12  statement that just sort of reflects back a little

         13  bit to 2005.  It's relatively brief.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Why don't you

         15  make that statement, and then we'll continue with

         16  the questions.

         17                 MR. CASEY: Okay.  I'm pleased to have

         18  this opportunity to appear before the Committee.  As

         19  you know, this is a return engagement.  A little

         20  more than two years ago in 2005, I gave testimony

         21  before this Committee on the general subject of the

         22  state of New York City OTB's financial well being.

         23  At that time, I had noted I had the privilege to be

         24  the President for three years.  Well now I have two

         25  full years more under my belt, but still what I have
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          2  to say to you today is really no different than what

          3  I reported in 2005.

          4                 As you just heard from the Deputy

          5  Mayor, the financial well- being of New York City

          6  OTB continues to be deeply clouded, not by the

          7  operating performance of the corporation and its

          8  dedicated cadre of 1,500 loyal and hard working

          9  employees, but by the severely flawed scheme imposed

         10  by the State Legislature.

         11                 In my 2005 testimony, I told you that

         12  New York City OTB's original mandate, one, was to

         13  raise reasonable revenue for government, two, to

         14  prevent or curb unlawful bookmaking on horse races,

         15  and three, to conduct Off-Track wagering in keeping

         16  with the well being of the State's horse racing and

         17  breeding industries. Based on that balanced

         18  distribution scheme that equitably divided payments

         19  between government and horse racing and the breeding

         20  industries for many years was put out of balance by

         21  intervening legislation.

         22                 It should be kept in mind that during

         23  the first 13 years of New York City OTB's operation,

         24  the racing industry received only 20 percent of the

         25  operating revenue.  Whereas, in the last few years,
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          2  it has taken nearly over twice that percentage.  In

          3  other words, if the legislative scheme that existed

          4  back then was still in effect now, OTB would have

          5  $32 million dollars more available for its expenses

          6  and distributions to the City of New York.

          7                 In the ensuing two years, the

          8  situation has gotten even worse.  The Legislature

          9  has not yet taken any action to restore the balanced

         10  equilibrium of the racing law for us or the five

         11  other regional OTB's that continue to operate as

         12  reliable sources of revenue for local government.

         13  Much of their focus has been on what to do with the

         14  racing franchise, which you may have read in the

         15  press, is still, as of today, unresolved in Albany.

         16                 The last time I testified I told you

         17  that in Fiscal 2004 and 2005 we were required to pay

         18  out more money than we generated.  In both years,

         19  over 70 percent went to the racing industry.  I'm

         20  here to tell you that that trend, as you saw from

         21  Dan's testimony, has continued in 2006 and 2007.

         22  This trend of diminishing revenue to the City

         23  brought about by, among other things, larger

         24  impositions by the State on OTB's revenues and the

         25  normal escalation of ordinary expenses of operating
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          2  a business continues.  This is why Mayor Bloomberg

          3  has taken the position that the City cannot be

          4  expected to, and will not continue to, allow this

          5  diversion of larger and larger amounts of New York

          6  City OTB's operating revenues to be given as

          7  inflated subsidies to the racing industry and the

          8  State.  The Mayor's recent statements come in the

          9  context of a legislative scheme of mandated

         10  distributions that I've already talked about.

         11                 As a consequence, at a recent meeting

         12  of New York City OTB's Board of Directors held on

         13  November 19th, 2007, I was directed to prepare a

         14  plan for the orderly wind down of the corporation's

         15  activities as a depletion of our cash available for

         16  operations, what we've called our unrestricted cash,

         17  looms.

         18                 At present, our forecast is that

         19  without the long requested legislative change to the

         20  distribution framework, New York City OTB's

         21  unrestricted cash will be exhausted by the end of

         22  the current Fiscal Year in 2008.  When this occurs

         23  without a means to internally generate cash for

         24  continued operations, or an external infusion of

         25  cash, OTB will be forced to close its doors.
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          2                 One caveat is in order here.  Last

          3  Thursday, November 29th, the Appellate Division of

          4  the Third Department in Albany issued a decision in

          5  litigation that New York City OTB had initiated

          6  against the State Racing and Wagering Board.  I made

          7  reference to that in my 2005 testimony.  In this

          8  decision, the Appellate Court ruled that certain

          9  payments that the OTB's have been required to make

         10  to their regional harness tracks under the Racing

         11  Board interpretation of that law were not in fact

         12  required under the law.  The full financial impact

         13  of this decision upon OTB is still being evaluated,

         14  and there's no assurance that there will be any

         15  material change in the corporations unrestricted

         16  cash balances at the end of the current Fiscal Year.

         17                 As the Deputy Mayor has said, the

         18  trajectory remains the same.  That caveat aside,

         19  closing our doors will impact our employees, labor

         20  and management alike, as well the entire racing

         21  industry in the Empire State.  Some of these

         22  stakeholders are in the room today.  One of the

         23  State breeding funds stands to lose over one- third

         24  of its revenue upon the closure of OTB operations. A

         25  principal in that fund recently told me Ray, if you
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          2  go out of business on June 30th, we're out of

          3  business on July 1st.  Although our wind down plan

          4  is in its initial development stage, and therefore,

          5  there are few details to share with you today, you

          6  should rest assured that we will make every effort

          7  under the plan to assist our employees in any

          8  practical way available, but as you can imagine,

          9  those very same liquidity problems that will cause

         10  us to shut our doors will also dictate just how much

         11  help we can provide.  It is anticipated that the

         12  cessation of the corporations business operations

         13  and the closure of all of our business outlets, 61

         14  betting parlors, 3 teletheaters, 8 restaurant

         15  wagering facilities, telephone and internet

         16  wagering, along with the displacement of our

         17  workforce, will occur within a relatively short time

         18  frame, as will the removal and securing of our cash.

         19                 After this initial shutdown activity,

         20  we will then be left with only a skeletal staff at

         21  the corporate offices and our warehouse to conduct

         22  and manage the remaining aspects of our business.

         23  It may require a full month or more after the

         24  closure of our outlets to remove and secure

         25  furniture and equipment.  Final auditing and cash
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          2  reconciliations of the locations will also need to

          3  be completed.

          4                 With respect to our leases, since all

          5  of our parlors and teletheaters are leased, staff

          6  and our outside real estate consultants will attempt

          7  wherever, and to the fullest extent possible, the

          8  sublease or assign those leased premises, or

          9  negotiate some other form of surrender of lease

         10  termination with our landlords.

         11                 With respect to our employees, there

         12  will need to be a complete compliance with

         13  applicable statutory and contractual notice

         14  requirements, and certainly, we will look at

         15  whether, and to what extent, New York City OTB will

         16  be in a position to offer severance packages to

         17  those employees if, in fact, they are displaced.  We

         18  will also assist our employees in efforts to find

         19  future employment through possible re- deployment in

         20  the City government if that's available, and other

         21  OTB's or race tracks. We're also considering some

         22  kind of job fairs if it comes to that.

         23                 The prospect of such a cessation of

         24  operations is currently very unattractive, and

         25  frankly, Mr. Chairman, devastating to our loyal
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          2  employees and their families.  Unfortunately, there

          3  is now simply no reasonable alternatives.

          4  Specifically, for the last several legislative

          5  sessions in Albany, OTB and the Mayor's Office

          6  proposed several omnibus racing bills to be

          7  considered by both chambers various solutions.  We

          8  were supported in these efforts by the unions

          9  representing our workers.  Indeed, I believe you

         10  will hear testimony today from the president of one

         11  of those locals 2021, which is part of the District

         12  Council 37.  I believe you may also hear from

         13  District Council 37, which represents the largest

         14  portion of OTB's workforce.

         15                 Our sister OTB's and other entities

         16  throughout the State over the last two years have

         17  joined us in voicing our concerns.

         18                 I want to make a further point here,

         19  Mr. Chairman, that both myself, and our Chairman

         20  David Kornstein (phonetic) agree with the Mayor that

         21  these things need to be fixed, but we also agree

         22  that it is completely unacceptable for taxpayers to

         23  bear any risk in supporting OTB's operations.  So

         24  the trajectory looks like June 30th, as I talked

         25  about in my testimony.  That's a projection based on
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          2  a lot of assumptions and a lot of good work by a lot

          3  of people.  It could change a little bit, but

          4  fundamentally the trajectory of New York City OTB

          5  remains the same, and as Dan pointed out in his

          6  testimony about some of the other OTB's, I think a

          7  lot of the OTB's in the State are well managed, but

          8  the effect of the law is causing the trajectory of

          9  all of us to remain the same, and that's downward.

         10                 I'll take any questions, as I believe

         11  the Deputy Mayor will.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I appreciate

         13  that, and I hoping that the contingency plan and the

         14  shutdown plan will not have to come to fruition, and

         15  that we can impose upon Albany the nature of the

         16  crisis and the fact that if a shutdown were to take

         17  place, it would not be in anyone's interest.

         18                 There have been a couple of reports

         19  in the papers recently.  I think possibly as

         20  recently as yesterday or the day before about a

         21  potential merger with Nassau County OTB.  Can either

         22  the Deputy Mayor or Mr. Casey talk about any

         23  discussions, and what would be the nature of the

         24  discussions?  Is that something that's currently

         25  being contemplated?
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          2                 MR. CASEY: I'll take a shot at that

          3  right now.  I think it's logical to any reasonable

          4  businessman that you have five separate OTB

          5  corporations in the State that in a lot of ways do

          6  the same things, and so we always have meetings and

          7  conversations with all of the OTB's around the State

          8  about ways in which we can make our business more

          9  efficient.  I expect those kind of discussions to

         10  always occur.

         11                 As it relates to a specific merger

         12  between Nassau and New York City, I can tell you I

         13  for one have not had any of those conversations.

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Nor have I.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Is there

         16  discussion with any other OTB about a potential

         17  merger?

         18                 MR. CASEY: I'll let the Deputy Mayor

         19  answer for himself, but I can tell you that I on a

         20  regular basis meet with every OTB in the State to

         21  talk to them about things that we can do together to

         22  make our operations more efficient so that more

         23  money flows to local government in spite of the

         24  statutory scheme that we've both spoken about today.

         25                 I am currently not having any
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          2  discussion about merging New York City OTB's

          3  operations with any of the other OTB's, and frankly,

          4  all of the OTB's are on the same trajectory.  What

          5  needs to happen here first and foremost is a change

          6  to the formula in which local governments get money

          7  through OTB's.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  Let me ask

          9  what is probably a silly question, but what would

         10  actually happen if New York City OTB was to fail to

         11  make a monthly payment to New York State, the NYRA

         12  and the Wagering Board?

         13                 MR. CASEY: I could talk probably

         14  directly to first hand examples of that.  Before we

         15  started to adjust our payables on the racing

         16  industry slide  --  I'm not sure what slide that is

         17   -- we in fact started to stall some of our payments

         18  that are made to the State itself.  The State took

         19  immediate enforcement action to make that those

         20  monies, in fact, were being paid.

         21                 The way the State law is set up, Mr.

         22  Chairman, it requires New York City OTB, as long as

         23  we are in operation, to make those payments directly

         24  to government.  There's a little bit of flexibility

         25  in the timing of payments made to the racing
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          2  industry itself, and it has always been the policy

          3  of New York City OTB, and my personal policy, always

          4  to obey the law.  So fundamentally none of the

          5  payments to the State  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: For the record,

          7  mine as well.

          8                 MR. CASEY: Okay.  We tried retarding

          9  them a little bit, and it became clear that that

         10  would, from our advice that we got, violate the law.

         11    Where we thought we had some flexibility was in

         12  the racing industry, and so those payables that

         13  we've been sort of pushing back.  So currently right

         14  now on that payable side where we have flexibility

         15  we're at about 90 days, and that's created basically

         16  the cash flow to keep the business going for the

         17  last couple of years.  That is the only place that

         18  we believe that we have some flexibility to retard

         19  payments to some degree, but we've reached the end

         20  of that rope.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  In 2005,

         22  and I believe you distributed your testimony from

         23  the hearing we had two years ago, there were

         24  approximately 13 restaurants which generated about

         25  $47 million dollars.  You testified at that time
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          2  about increasing that number to 25 to generate

          3  additional revenue.  Can you give us an update on

          4  the status of that goal, and how much more money

          5  you've produced, and additional restaurants since

          6  then?

          7                 MR. CASEY: Frankly, one of the things

          8  that took place between my testimony in 2005 and the

          9  present is the analysis that we had done by the

         10  Boston Consulting Group, and I believe you'll hear

         11  testimony to them about that particular process.

         12                 As it relates to your specific

         13  question of restaurants, the 13 number I believe

         14  back in 2005 included our three teletheaters, which

         15  each have restaurants in them plus ten stand alone

         16  restaurants around the City.  I'm sorry to report

         17  that based on the broken business model we've not

         18  been able to make future investments in those

         19  particular initiatives.  In fact, the number of

         20  restaurants that we have around the City has

         21  dropped.  At the time, we had ten restaurants, and

         22  since that time, we've been forced to close two of

         23  them.  We closed a facility in Staten Island, and we

         24  also closed a facility in Queens, called Side

         25  Tracks, so that right now, where we stand, is there
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          2  are eight stand alone restaurants, which are

          3  basically partnerships with private restaurants, and

          4  three restaurants that we currently own.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Boston Consulting

          6  is going to testify today?

          7                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Yes.

          8                 MR. CASEY: I believe they are.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'll save some of

         10  those questions for them.

         11                 One last question, and then I'm going

         12  to turn it over to some of my colleagues who have

         13  questions as well.  You referred in your testimony

         14  to internet wagering, and I know OTB had lobbied the

         15  State to allow internet wagering.  They had special

         16  legislation which passed in Albany in the summer of

         17  2006, which allowed internet wagering starting in

         18  January '07.  Obviously, there were some problems I

         19  guess in getting that site up and running.  It took

         20  months to actually begin the internet gambling,

         21  which I believe took place in  --  correct me if I'm

         22  wrong  -- late August of this past year.  One is why

         23  did it take so long?  Can give you give us a status

         24  of what's happening with that, and whether you

         25  believe that that's going to result in significantly
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          2  more revenue?

          3                 MR. CASEY: Let me take that question

          4  in a couple of parts.  As it relates to the timing,

          5  fundamentally, two things affected the timing.  One

          6  of them was a relatively lengthy review by the State

          7  of the way in which we were going to conduct

          8  internet wagering.

          9                 The other piece which was much long

         10  was a process by which both I and some members of

         11  the Administration tried to meet with all the OTB's

         12  around the State.  It was our view that it was best

         13  to deploy internet wagering as a single platform

         14  among all the OTB's in the State.   So we negotiated

         15  for the better part of five or six months with all

         16  of the OTB's to try to come to a resolution to have

         17  one single internet platform for the State of New

         18  York and all of the OTB's.

         19                 I will tell you at the conclusion of

         20  many of those meetings, they were a failure, and we

         21  finally decided that we needed to cut our losses and

         22  open up our own internet wagering site.  So we

         23  quickly moved to what I like to refer to internally

         24  as sort of plan B and that was to open up our own

         25  internet wagering site.  We, in fact, did that, and
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          2  it went live as you had discussed.

          3                 It's currently doing  --  I don't

          4  want to get into too many details, but on some days

          5  about $100,000 dollars a day. We think it is

          6  continuing to grow.  It's sort of hard to project

          7  what the ultimate solution would be, but I think

          8  it's more important, Mr. Chairman, to focus on the

          9  net effect.  The internet can be a slam dunk for New

         10  York City and New York City OTB, but with the broken

         11  model that we have in Albany, it's not going to be

         12  the answer.  It's not going to be a solution by

         13  itself.

         14                 We need to be able to do both.  We

         15  need to be able to move our business into some

         16  technology, and more efficient operations.  We need

         17  to make ourselves more available to different

         18  customers around the City and around the State, but

         19  you can't make any of those investments, or any kind

         20  of long- term plans, when you have a broken business

         21  model.

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: And I should

         23  just add to that.  When we retained Boston

         24  Consulting Group, which was probably about a year

         25  ago or so, it was not with the intention of
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          2  concluding that the business had to be shutdown.  In

          3  fact, it was with the intention what can we actually

          4  do to significantly enhance the operating

          5  performance.  As you'll hear, we looked at other

          6  models from around the world.  We entertained

          7  discussions with other OTB's.  We looked at the

          8  returns on investments from opening up or even

          9  closing restaurants.  All to look at what the

         10  operating performance we be, and how it could be

         11  enhanced, and fundamentally what we concluded is

         12  while there are some steps that can be taken on an

         13  operating basis that it's not really prudent to do

         14  them today because we don't know the future of OTB,

         15  but even if we were able to, in the absence of a

         16  more global fix of the industry where you can

         17  correctly align the interests of the racing industry

         18  and the OTB's, it ultimately won't change the final

         19  course of action.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Mr. Casey, on the

         21  internet gambling, I assume there are the proper

         22  safeguards, but how does it work to keep my minor

         23  children, and other minor children who spend a lot

         24  of time on the internet from actually gambling?

         25                 MR. CASEY: What I should first say is
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          2  that we've had a telephone wagering, or account

          3  wagering operation, up in the City for almost 20

          4  years, and although we like in short hand to call

          5  this a new activity, internet wagering,

          6  fundamentally, the way in which the State enacted

          7  internet wagering in New York State was an extension

          8  of those existing telephone accounts.

          9                 So the same way in which we've

         10  assured that minors don't wager through telephone

         11  accounts, we do that on the internet. So

         12  fundamentally people are given both passwords and

         13  PIN numbers, and are required to use them, and

         14  constantly use them.  Those numbers then time out

         15  when they're on the internet site, and so we don't

         16  give those numbers out until we've opened up an

         17  account. When we open up an account, we check to see

         18  who the person is who is wagering.

         19                 I will tell you that if an adult

         20  tries to empower a minor purposely to be able to

         21  wager, sometimes it's difficult to know that on just

         22  the internet site, but then an adult would have to

         23  falsify information to us.  I mean no thing is

         24  perfect, but we try to take every circumstance to

         25  ensure that only adults over the age of 18 are
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          2  wagering on the internet, or even enter some of

          3  sites around New York City.

          4                 In fact, sometimes it even hampers

          5  our ability, but we think that it's a necessary

          6  precaution.  As you know, minors can enter into a

          7  racetrack in certain areas of it, but in more of our

          8  facilities, we try to exclude minors.  So we do

          9  everything we can to ensure that minors are not able

         10  to wager at our facilities, or on the internet.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.  I'm

         12  going to call upon some of my colleagues who have

         13  questions.  First, brownie points for coming first

         14  and early, Council Member Lew Fidler.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman. Good afternoon, gentlemen.  Back in the

         17  stone age when computers didn't have color monitors

         18  and the best printers available  --  it was still

         19  dot matrix  --  I had a computer simulation game

         20  called Balance of Power, and it was a game in which

         21  you assumed the role of a world leader, and as you

         22  reacted to current events, the computer would

         23  respond on behalf of other countries.  The object

         24  was to avoid pushing the button for thermonuclear

         25  war.  Without being overly dramatic, it sounds to me
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          2  a little bit like that's what you're doing here.

          3  Threatening to push the button so that we can get

          4  something that we clearly deserve, which is a better

          5  deal of OTB.

          6                 The problems that I have really are

          7  kind of threefold.  The first is there are 1,700

          8  families who have to be in an absolute panic about

          9  their future in this City because you've taken this

         10  stance that you're not going to do this.

         11                 I guess the second is I think we all

         12  remember a day when OTB was not as it is today.  It

         13  was a patronage laden agency. So when you talk about

         14  asking the State to accept a formula for

         15  distributions that would be based on the net

         16  operating profit of the agency some people may have

         17  a little bit of an historical problem with that in

         18  the sense that we all know that agencies can be

         19  asked to pick up costs that aren't necessarily

         20  related to their own operation, and employees that

         21  aren't necessarily necessary. While OTB is being run

         22  effectively and efficiently now, who can make that

         23  promise five years from now?  So I'm a little

         24  concerned that the threshold that you're setting may

         25  not be all that reasonable.
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          2                 I guess last is to the extent that

          3  this is a threatening consequence, I don't know that

          4  we've seen that the Legislature, particularly the

          5  Legislature in Albany, responds particularly well to

          6  be threatened.

          7                 Without having heard the other side

          8  of this, I have some real questions.  The first is

          9  very practical.  You say that we're running at a

         10  shortfall this year.  We're going to have to put

         11  $358,000 dollars into the operation of OTB to make

         12  it a net zero, but you've also said that's after

         13  distribution.  I'm just curious. How much will our

         14  distribution from OTB be this year above and beyond

         15  that $358,000 dollars?

         16                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Let me refer

         17  you back to this.  The distribution is roughly in

         18  the order of $15 or so million dollars, but what we

         19  also said was the net to the City by 2009, or may

         20  2010, will be negative.  So even after distributions

         21  the City will be putting in money within the next

         22  couple of years.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But in the

         24  present time, in the present year, we would still be

         25  making a profit.  So the threat to push the button
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          2  quite yet might be a little premature.  Don't you

          3  think?

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: We think if

          5  we wanted to put the money in that would be correct.

          6    But let me just address your broader point.  I

          7  think to analogize this to pressing the button is I

          8  think a little bit unfair.  We have been trying for

          9  years to address this issue.  We've made many

         10  proposals to the State Legislature.  We have

         11  undertaken extensive analysis.  We've engaged in

         12  conversations with the other OTB's.  In the previous

         13  Administration, there were talks about actually

         14  privatizing OTB. The City is essentially at wits

         15  end.  I don't know how your game Balance of Power

         16  actually played out, but we feel like we have

         17  exhausted every reasonable alternative.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I was a bad

         19  player, Deputy Mayor.  I caused thermonuclear war

         20  more than once so.

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Did it make

         22  you happy?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: No, it didn't.

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: So we've

         25  really been trying, and there is absolutely no
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          2  evidence  --  You talked about how you deal with the

          3  State Legislature.  We understand it's their ability

          4  to do something about it that we're trying to

          5  address, but while they may not respond well to

          6  threats, this isn't a threat.  What they do do is do

          7  they do respond well to crisis.  This is a crisis.

          8  It is a very clear crisis, and yes the City could

          9  pony up money to keep it going for the next couple

         10  of years, and still on a net basis take money out,

         11  but that situation is going to change within the

         12  next couple of years.  So we might as well actually

         13  address it now rather than two years from now, five

         14  years from now, ten years from now, because the

         15  reality is this thing has been insolvent for two

         16  years.  We've been holding it together with baling

         17  wire, and we just can't, or shouldn't do that any

         18  longer.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I don't

         20  disagree with that, and it's always better to be

         21  ahead of the curve.  I appreciate your telling me

         22  that you've trying for years with Albany to get

         23  things done.  As we all know, things in Albany don't

         24  happen terribly quickly, particularly when the

         25  City's interests seem to be involved, but it can't

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  just be we don't like New York City.  Nuts to you.

          3  What would the impact be upon the racing industry if

          4  we change the distribution formula?  Would we be

          5  putting tracks out of business, breeders out of

          6  business?  Because obviously, if we put the tracks

          7  out of business, then there will be nothing to bet

          8  on, and so there's a circle to this.  I want to

          9  understand.  Are the tracks making millions and

         10  millions, or are they in economic distress?  I know

         11  this is not the NBA where we typically get property

         12  tax rebates to stadiums because they're doing really

         13  well.

         14                 What's the story with harness racing?

         15    I summer in Monticello, and that track looks to be

         16  in pretty, pretty bad shape.

         17                 MR. CASEY: I think the whole racing

         18  industry in the State of New York is suffering, but

         19  I would also point out that harness tracks, as an

         20  example  --  just one example  --  have had the

         21  ability to do alternate gaming that New York City

         22  OTB and others do not have.  That alternate gaming

         23  is something called VLT's, or what a lot of people

         24  in the State like to call now I think is called  --

         25  Well I call it a slot machine.  I been corrected and
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          2  told it's a VGM, but fundamentally to every normal

          3  person that would look at it and say it's a slot

          4  machine.  In fact, Yonkers has a think over 4,000

          5  slot machines.  So the harness industries issues

          6  have been addressed in Albany, and they been given

          7  an alternate revenue stream.

          8                 If you took a look at the Boston

          9  Consulting report in a little bit of detail, you

         10  would also see that we think that that presents an

         11  opportunity that while you're adding some other

         12  forms of revenue to the racing industry, you can

         13  then balance out some of the other issues for New

         14  York City OTB.  So that I wouldn't argue with you

         15  that everybody is suffering, but they have another

         16  piece of revenue at the table that we don't have

         17  currently.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Having freely

         19  admitted to having been to Monticello Racetrack six

         20  times in the last year and never once to go to the

         21  races, I understand that.  So my question, and I

         22  don't know that every racetrack in the State of New

         23  York that is dependent upon your distributions to

         24  some degree has video lottery terminals.  You really

         25  didn't answer the first part of the question.  Even
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          2  after that, how dependent is this industry upon the

          3  distributions that OTB's make?

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Right now,

          5  it's highly dependent upon them in the absence of

          6  alternative revenue sources. That does not mean that

          7  they need to be as dependent as they have been in

          8  the past.

          9                 No one argues that NYRA, the New York

         10  Racing Association, has done a good job managing the

         11  tracks, but we're also saying here is we think there

         12  actually is an answer, and the answer ultimately is

         13  to line the interests of the racing tracks and the

         14  OTB's.  What business would like to have a complete

         15  disalignment of interests between the parties that

         16  sell its product and the parties that provide the

         17  product?  Nobody wants that, and so we say well we

         18  think there's a solution to that.  The solution is

         19  to better align the interests by basing

         20  distributions on net income.

         21                 Well you say but patronage.  People

         22  are concerned about patronage, and you referred to

         23  the Stone Age.  We like to think that in government

         24  today that was the Stone Age.  The Modern Age is

         25  where you have well run, rarely used for patronage
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          2  operations, and we should have more confidence in

          3  our ability to police those things so that the real

          4  interest is in aligning those interests.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I don't

          6  disagree with that, but while I have a great deal of

          7  confidence in the Bloomberg Administration in terms

          8  of that, I don't know who is going to be here ten

          9  years from now, and it's just not patronage.  It's

         10  just a general efficiency of government is always

         11  put in question.  Why it costs up a million dollars

         12  to renovate a park that a private developer could do

         13  for half a million.  So that's always the question,

         14  and I think that's an issue that you'll have to

         15  resolve.

         16                 You mentioned NYRA, and I understand

         17  that the issue with NYRA is going to be redesignated

         18  by the State is very much on the floor up in Albany

         19  now.  Does the City have a position on that, and do

         20  you think that plays into this at all?

         21                 MR. CASEY: I don't know that the City

         22  has a firm position, or any position, right now, as

         23  to who in fact should win the franchise.  Our

         24  position should be made very clear.  It is our view

         25  that whoever wins the franchise, whether it's NYRA
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          2  or it's another party, and clearly everybody would

          3  do it a little bit different.  This is not about a

          4  blame game.  This is about a structural

          5  misalignment, and so no matter who is standing in

          6  NYRA's shoes, or who is standing in OTB's shoes,

          7  there is a structural misalignment by having the

          8  interests working against each other. So it's our

          9  position that that alignment has to take place with

         10  who ever ends up with the racing franchise.

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I would also

         12  add the question of who should end up with it also

         13  involves a series of very complex legal questions.

         14  There is an issue  --  it probably doesn't' make a

         15  lot of sense to go into now  --  about who actually

         16  controls, owns the land underneath the racetracks

         17  whether it's NYRA, and if it does, then it would be

         18  very difficult to dislodge in any event.  That's a

         19  somewhat murky legal question.  Our view is it's

         20  less important at the end of the day, as Ray said,

         21  who runs them than that they're run well, and that

         22  the interests of the distribution and the tracks

         23  really can be viewed as being completely consistent.

         24                 MR. CASEY: Mr. Council Member, I just

         25  want to make one point that I didn't make before,
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          2  and that was about the net scenario that the Deputy

          3  Mayor and you spoke about.  In that kind of

          4  situation, if the industry grew, everybody would

          5  benefit from it, but the trend has been basically

          6  flat nationally.  So if the industry didn't grow,

          7  everybody would feel the pain equally.  The benefit

          8  that that has is it distributes the pain to a lot of

          9  different parties.  So it incentivizes them to work

         10  together to increase that pot.  It's a way in which

         11  we can take government in a large part out of the

         12  business of actually running the OTB's, and the

         13  stakeholders would each get a percentage of that

         14  particular net.  So all of their interests are

         15  aligned, and they're invested together to make that

         16  pot bigger.  When it gets smaller then the pain is

         17  then shared by multiple parties.

         18                 I'm not saying that that is the

         19  solution, but when you're talking about sort a net

         20  scenario, I think there are a lot of benefits to

         21  that kind of solution.  Fundamentally, that solution

         22  is going to happen in Albany.  All we can have is

         23  opinions about it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: It sounds a

         25  little bit like salary cap in sports  --  right?  --
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          2    Trying to share the revenue equally.

          3                 Just one last question.  You raised

          4  alternative sources of revenue for the tracks, and

          5  I'm just wondering whether or not you have a

          6  position.  I'm not going to ask you about video

          7  lotteries at OTB's because I think that would be a

          8  neighborhood disaster, but what about the incredible

          9  amounts of money that is being spent on betting on

         10  other sports in this country and this City, perhaps

         11  as benignly as football pools?  Something that is

         12  clearly going to bookies illegally.  One of the

         13  reasons that we did OTB was to try and drive the

         14  bookies out of this market.  I'm sure we haven't

         15  done that completely anyway.  Does the City have a

         16  position on that?  I know that it would take some

         17  kind of Constitutional Amendment unless they could

         18  figure out some other legal technicality like they

         19  did with video lottery terminals? Maybe we could

         20  call it football lottery terminals.  So that we

         21  could increase the revenue to a company like OTB

         22  from another source kind of creatively?

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: We are really

         24  not in favor of an expansion of gambling at the

         25  neighborhood level.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well that was

          3  a fair and concrete direct answer.  I'm not sure

          4  that I agree with it because gambling will go on in

          5  the neighborhood level whether or not OTB is

          6  involved in it or not, and perhaps it would be a

          7  wonderful way to generate significant amounts of

          8  revenue.

          9                 I will just conclude by saying this.

         10  I feel very, very compassionately for the 1,700

         11  families who are in the middle of this, and so that

         12  is why I'm a little concerned with the approach

         13  you're taking to try and get a result that is

         14  clearly just, which the charts that you have laid

         15  out here clearly show that OTB is getting the short

         16  end of the stick.  I appreciate the fact that you're

         17  trying to do it before it becomes a negative cash

         18  flow, before you even consider the revenues that the

         19  1,700 employees provide, and I would support you in

         20  coming to some kind of fairer solution, but I'm just

         21  concerned that the other side of the story is going

         22  to be well gee the racing issue relies on this money

         23  too.  I don't it's quite as simple as some of us

         24  would think sitting on this side of the table

         25  listening to it.  It's going to be a very
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          2  complicated issue, and I hope that we can solve it

          3  before it does become a negative cashflow.

          4                 MR. CASEY: Mr. Council Member, I

          5  would tell you that I agree with you wholeheartedly

          6  about the impact that it has on my employees.  I'm a

          7  president who spends a lot of time in the branches

          8  visiting with those employees, and even with their

          9  families, and so I would not endorse this particular

         10  plan if I didn't think that we were absolutely,

         11  factually, at that particular point.  I think that

         12  this is something that we absolutely need to do, and

         13  for me personally it's a position of sort of last

         14  resort.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         16  Council Member. Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chair.  Let me say I rarely disagree with Lew

         19  Fidler, but this time I'm going to disagree with

         20  just about everything he said.  First of all, I play

         21  Halo, not Balance of Power where most of the time

         22  you spend most of your time trying to not get killed

         23  by the covenant, the evil alien entity, much like

         24  Albany.

         25                 So let me start with your first
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          2  position.  I commend your stance on this, and I

          3  agree with exactly with what you just said.  This is

          4  the best way.  We're going to save jobs.  We're

          5  going to make this profitable.  This is the best way

          6  to do it, the way that you're doing it.  I know you

          7  don't do it lightly, and I happen to think that New

          8  York City taxpayer money, which should go to our

          9  police or our schools, should be used to fund

         10  Upstate racetracks, and if this is what we need to

         11  do, this is what we need to do.

         12                 Mr. Fidler disagreed about the net.

         13  I absolutely agree it should come out of the net.  I

         14  understand that there's been problems with patronage

         15  and things like that in New York City, but to even

         16  insinuate that Albany is going to do a better job at

         17  routing that out then we are  --  I think it's

         18  ludicrous.  If there's a problem with the OTB, we'll

         19  fix it here in New York City. We don't need Albany

         20  telling us basically anything especially about

         21  patronage.

         22                 I think Mr. Fidler said Albany

         23  doesn't respond to threats.  I think you're

         24  absolutely right.  This isn't a threat. This is a

         25  reality.  If the intent of this law was to help
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          2  municipalities, and to the extent now that it will

          3  very soon hurt this municipality, it's violating the

          4  intent of the law.  We need to do something about

          5  it, and that's what you're doing.

          6                 I think our Chair asked you about not

          7  paying New York State, and I agree with you.  You

          8  need to follow the law, but as I just said if the

          9  intent of the law was to help municipalities and

         10  we're about to violate the intent of the law that

         11  may give you a cause to go to court on this, and in

         12  good faith, not be violating the law.  If they think

         13  we are then they can sue us, and prove in court why

         14  this is the right way to go.  Just an idea, and make

         15  them sue us for the money.

         16                 MR. CASEY: I've not been shy about

         17  suing the State.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Well make

         19  them take action to enforce us paying more money

         20  than we actually make on racetracks.

         21                 I'm a novice at this.  NYRA, is that

         22  a State agency? What exactly is NYRA?

         23                 MR. CASEY: NYRA is a racing

         24  association.  Basically, what that means is it's an

         25  organization that was set up to conduct thoroughbred
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          2  racing in the State of New York.  They operate the

          3  racing on three racetracks, Belmont, Aqueduct in New

          4  York City and Saratoga.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Can you

          6  analogize it to another entity out there?

          7                 MR. CASEY: It's not a government

          8  entity like a public benefit corporation.  It's

          9  something less than that.  It's actually

         10  incorporated under the BCL as a private corporation

         11  so that it's kind of an animal that doesn't exist

         12  anywhere else.  So it was incorporated as a private

         13  corporation under the BCL laws, but then it was

         14  given authority to act on behalf of the State to

         15  conduct racing, and so that it's profit at the end

         16  of every year goes back to the State, or is supposed

         17  to go back to the State as a franchise fee.

         18                 They then, as you know, were

         19  indicted, the company and a number of the

         20  principals, and then got a deferred prosecution.

         21  They then took on a monitor, and they came out of

         22  that particular process in essence a cleansed

         23  entity.

         24                 However, what's going on right now in

         25  Albany is that franchise that they had for some 50
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          2  years has expired, and there are a number of

          3  entities that chose to take over that franchise to

          4  run those three racetracks.  The Governor took a

          5  look at this when he came into office, and made a

          6  recommendation that NYRA, or a new NYRA get the next

          7  franchise.

          8                 The process that's going on in Albany

          9  now is what view the Assembly and the Senate will

         10  take on that particular issue because it requires an

         11  act of the Legislature and the Governor to sign it

         12  before we pick somebody else to run those three

         13  racetracks.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm not sure

         15  I'm much less confused, but  --

         16                 MR. CASEY: I apologize.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: It's not your

         18  fault.  Let's keep it simple.  The money that NYRA

         19  makes goes to Albany.  Who has oversight over NYRA?

         20                 MR. CASEY: NYRA, traditionally, has

         21  had no oversight.  However, subsequent to their

         22  deferred prosecution plan, the State created an

         23  oversight board.  It's a State board created in the

         24  Pataki Administration.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay.  So the
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          2  State gets the money, the State has oversight, and

          3  who appoints NYRA positions?

          4                 MR. CASEY: I don't know if I can

          5  answer this in detail.  So with a little bit of a

          6  caveat on the details, NYRA has a Board of Directors

          7  or Trustees.  Some of them are appointed by

          8  government.  Some of them have an equity interest

          9  when NYRA was first formed some 50 years ago.  So

         10  their Board of Trustees is made up of people who

         11  have a single share of stock from the original BCL

         12  corporation I talked about, and also appointees of

         13  at least the Governor.  I believe that the

         14  Legislature also may have some appointees, but I'm

         15  not positive.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So it's a

         17  government agency. We figured it out.  If Albany has

         18  oversight, Albany gets the money and Albany puts the

         19  jobs there, and they're getting our money.  As

         20  usual, the State is taking New York City taxpayer

         21  money, and doing with it what it wants.  We've

         22  solved that mystery.

         23                 So let me move on then.  The money

         24  that's coming from New York City OTB  --  I'm

         25  correct  --  that's all New York City money.
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          2  Correct?

          3                 MR. CASEY: Correct.  It's all New

          4  York City players. Our account wagering has some

          5  activity outside the State of New York, but for the

          6  most part  --  You know sometimes some people go

          7  down to some other states.  They might not bet from

          8  inside of New York State, but 98 percent of the

          9  revenue comes from New York City itself.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So why  --

         11  again, from a novice standpoint  --  Why are we even

         12  using that money to pay tracks outside of New York

         13  City?  Don't they have their own revenue sources?

         14                 MR. CASEY: Well the way in which the

         15  racing law was set up is OTB, for the privilege to

         16  conduct wagering on races conducted at tracks, the

         17  State Legislature has imposed fees to be paid back

         18  to all those tracks throughout New York State.  So

         19  they get, in essence, in the case of thoroughbreds,

         20  they get a statutory fee.  Then they get a

         21  contractual fee that we're required to pay them.  In

         22  the case of harness tracks, they get a statutory

         23  fee. They get a contractual fee, and then they get

         24  this third fee that's called a hold harmless, and if

         25  you want to talk about a fourth fee, they also got
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          2  slot machines.  That's the harness side, and on the

          3  thoroughbred side, it's two fees and the ability to

          4  put in slot machines that they haven't put in yet.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So we're

          6  paying for the privilege of betting on races

          7  elsewhere, which makes sort of sense. Now are they

          8  paying for the privilege of betting on our

          9  racetracks? Are the racetracks here in New York City

         10    --  Is Aqueduct getting money from Nassau OTB?

         11                 MR. CASEY: NYRA gets money from all

         12  of the OTB's throughout the State, and so there's

         13  something that's called simulcasting.  The

         14  simulcasting is when you export signal from a

         15  racetrack, and then an OTB takes wagers on it.  In a

         16  situation of a track outside of New York, there's an

         17  arm's length negotiation for what that fee should

         18  be.  That fee is about two, three percent. The fee

         19  for in- State tracks, on every dollar waged, there's

         20  about nine percent.  So when you add the subsidies

         21  to what I would argue to be a reasonable arm's

         22  length fee, you get the inflated money that goes to

         23  the racing industry.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay.  Now

         25  the regulatory fees that were raised in 2003 and
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          2  2005, what is that fee for, and who does that go to?

          3                 MR. CASEY: That fee goes to New York

          4  State, to the New York State Racing and Wagering

          5  Board.  So it collects pari-mutuel tax, and then on

          6  top of the pari-mutuel tax, they put in a regulatory

          7  fee that goes to the State that amounts to $5

          8  million dollars.

          9                 I should also point out that the

         10  money that goes to the breeding funds also actually

         11  first goes to New York State. Those breeding funds

         12  are administered State funds.  So the money is

         13  transferred to a State fund, and then they pass that

         14  money to breeders throughout Upstate New York to

         15  raise horses.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Now when you

         17  say pari-mutuel tax, you're saying that the State is

         18  taxing New York City OTB in addition to what you've

         19  mentioned?

         20                 MR. CASEY: That's correct.  It's

         21  three fundamental revenue streams that go to the

         22  State, the pari-mutuel tax, the regulatory fee, and

         23  then there's this kicker that they throw in that

         24  when customers don't cash their winning tickets, the

         25  proceeds of those winning that amount to $2 or $3
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          2  million dollars a year, we're required to turn over

          3  to the State every year.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Drum roll to

          5  the State. Okay, first prize.

          6                 MR. CASEY: So they get basically

          7  three kinds of streams of revenue that directly goes

          8  to the operation of State government, and then

          9  another stream of revenue that goes to the breeding

         10  funds.  It also supports the administration of those

         11  funds.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I was going

         13  to ask you about breeding funds, but I'm going on

         14  too long.  I might get to that eventually if I come

         15  back.

         16                 I also saw on one of your charts

         17  there was a little yellow line on the bottom that

         18  said State money, which is almost now even with City

         19  money.  What did that represent?

         20                 MR. CASEY: The things I just talked

         21  about, I think. The green line?

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Yes, the

         23  State Race and Wagering Board.

         24                 MR. CASEY: Yes, as the green and blue

         25  lines kind of come together, what you see is sort of
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          2  the State and the City's end almost coming together.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: So that's not

          4  any additional money.  That's what you've already

          5  mentioned.

          6                 MR. CASEY: That's the stuff I've

          7  already talked about.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Okay.  All

          9  right.  I've got some questions on breeding and

         10  things like that, but we'll let some of my

         11  colleagues go, and Mr. Doctoroff, talk to the Mayor

         12  about cessation for me.  Just off the top of my

         13  head.  Okay?  Thanks.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         15  Council Member. Council Member Robert Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair.  Let me just say I've listened to all of

         18  the testimony, and I think this is like robbery.

         19  They're like holding us up without a gun, and quite

         20  frankly, sitting here as a legislator, I'm getting

         21  angry.

         22                 Let me just ask a very simple

         23  question.  What can we do to resolve this outside of

         24  some of the suggestions that you've made?  Does the

         25  power lie in Albany, and if the answer is yes, do

                                                            66

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  you realistically think  --  Realistically, because

          3  I need to know what the real deal is, and not you

          4  know  --  Do you really think that the Legislature

          5  is going to resolve this matter this coming fiscal

          6  year?

          7                 MR. CASEY: Do you want to take a stab

          8  at that, or you want me to?

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I'm happy to

         10  try.  I'm afraid you'll be disappointed in my

         11  answer, but I don't know.  I don't know what they

         12  will do later this month when they have to vote to

         13  either give NYRA the franchise on new terms, or

         14  extend it for a period of time on the old terms.  I

         15  certainly don't know how they will respond as the

         16  crisis that New York City OTB is facing.

         17                 I will say I've been encouraged by

         18  the Governor's response, which is to come together

         19  with us and see if there aren't things that can be

         20  done, and I'm hopeful that the Legislature will do

         21  the same, but I can honestly not tell you what will

         22  happen over the course of the next six months.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Go ahead,

         24  sir.

         25                 MR. CASEY: The only thing that I
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          2  would add is that I cannot predict what Albany is

          3  going to do, and I don't think anybody in this room

          4  can.  However, I will point out to you that they are

          5  looking at the NYRA franchise, and as you can tell

          6  from the way in which we try to describe the

          7  economic model, NYRA which is the biggest entity

          8  other than New York City OTB and the State, when

          9  they're deciding what's going to happen with NYRA

         10  and are going forward basis, it appears to me that

         11  it would be logical to be able to deal with New York

         12  City OTB issues at the same time that you're dealing

         13  with the franchise issues.  We think that it

         14  presents a moment in time that may not come again

         15  for 30 or 40 years.  So I think that it is the best

         16  time to try to deal with this issue one way or

         17  another, but again, I can't predict what Albany will

         18  do or not do.  It's clear that the decision gets

         19  made there.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So if the

         21  decision is made there, then we, the Mayor's Office

         22  and the legislative body, us, should be lobbying our

         23  legislators as far as to ensure that OTB should be

         24  able to operate and make a profit and not have to go

         25  into a deficit just to operate.
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          2                 MR. CASEY: Any help you could give,

          3  would be welcome.

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: And I would

          5  go beyond that though because as I indicated

          6  earlier, short- term fix of the distribution scheme

          7  is likely only to be that.  Instead, you have to

          8  deal with the systemic problem of our interests and

          9  their interests being divergent at much of the time.

         10    So if you're going to lobby, which we certainly

         11  encourage, it's for both a fix of the distribution

         12  scheme amounts, but also the way in which it's done.

         13                 MR. CASEY: My staff has copies of my

         14  2005 testimony. Back then, we were looking for small

         15  changes that would have corrected this, we think, if

         16  it was done back then.  We're sort of beyond that

         17  point, and we feel pretty strongly that you need to

         18  make a significant structural change at this point.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  As far

         20  as distribution of the monies that you've got coming

         21  in, you say that the handle is the total amount of

         22  money that's taken in.  That's over a billion

         23  dollars a year.  The distributions to NYRA is 74

         24  percent, give or take, now.

         25                 MR. CASEY: The 74 percent is to the
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          2  whole racing industry.  NYRA's distribution is $54

          3  million.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  The

          5  whole racing industry is about 74 percent.

          6                 MR. CASEY: Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I assume that

          8  they don't that from you before you get it.  You

          9  have to be able to either electronically send it to

         10  them, or write a check.  Is that correct?

         11                 MR. CASEY: That's correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So why don't

         13  you just, like Peter Vallone said, why don't you

         14  just write them half of it, and tell them you take

         15  50 percent, or you take nothing.  Then let them sue

         16  us, and then we'll negotiate with them for a short-

         17  term and long- term.  Can you do that?

         18                 MR. CASEY: What we have done for the

         19  last four years because OTB is required to pay out

         20  all of its money at the end of every year, when you

         21  looked at those previous slides that have deficits

         22  in each and every year, I talked about reducing the

         23  amount of payables.  So we have drastically cut back

         24  the amount of money that we pay to the racing

         25  industry in each and every year.  We then created
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          2  that liquidity that's kept us going this far.

          3                 However, it's our belief that if we

          4  push those payments out any further, they will

          5  generate lawsuits, and those lawsuits will, in fact,

          6  shut OTB down.  So one way or another, if we push

          7  past  --  we believe  --  the 90 days that we're at

          8  right now then what ends up happening is  --  what I

          9  think would happen maybe on June 30th, there about,

         10  will happen immediately.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Now you say

         12  you conclude that it will shut OTB down.  Now isn't

         13  that the courts decision to do?

         14                 MR. CASEY: That's correct, sir.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, but if

         16  in fact you know how long lawsuits take.  They take

         17  a long time, and in fact, if you sue me, if I'm the

         18  racing industry, and I'm receiving all of this

         19  money, if you sue me, I would not want the courts to

         20  shut it down because the hand that's feeding me is

         21  not going to feed me any longer.  I mean at least

         22  that's the way I see it, not unless I don't

         23  understand something here.  Because, I tell you, my

         24  constituents, overall, they don't earn a whole lot

         25  of money.  The average constituent that I represent
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          2  earns under $34,000 dollars a year.  I'm talking

          3  about a family of four, and probably some of them

          4  are using OTB trying to hope that they hit a number,

          5  or hit a race so they could earn a little money to

          6  help pay some of the bills that they're paying for,

          7  but quite frankly, the average New Yorker is saying

          8  this is robbery.  They're robbing us, and we don't

          9  like to be robbed.  So I would suggest let them sue

         10  us, and then settle because as you know, 99 percent

         11  of the lawsuits are what? They're settled out of

         12  court.

         13                 MR. CASEY: In this particular case,

         14  because we're dealing with ongoing businesses and

         15  ongoing enterprises, one of the kinds of relief that

         16  would be available in a lawsuit is equitable relief.

         17    Equitable relief expedites the conclusion of the

         18  lawsuit way beyond any long period of time.  It's

         19  because equitable relief would be available to those

         20  tracks to sue us that we think that the freezing our

         21  assets could happen faster, rather than slower.  I

         22  certainly will take another look at it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: It seems as

         24  though over the years that the State Legislature and

         25  NYRA, and whoever else has the authority to increase
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          2  the amount of percentages and increase additional

          3  fees, and what have you, they're just robbing us

          4  blind. You know the blindfold is off, and all of the

          5  industries outside of those that are collecting 74

          6  percent of our money, the workers, the unions, the

          7  other people, we need to stand together and say

          8  enough is enough.  We don't have anymore to give.

          9                 MR. CASEY: It's blood from a stone at

         10  this point, Mr. Council Member.  Blood from a stone.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well let me

         12  say that  -- and I really don't know, but I assume

         13  that what Dan Doctoroff said as far as you Mr. Casey

         14  running OTB to the point where you're doing the best

         15  you can do I say to you that  --  assuming all that

         16  is true  --  I'll go up to Albany.  I'll go anywhere

         17  with you in order to get in someone's face and not

         18  be so diplomatic as you are because I think that my

         19  constituents are outraged that they have to pay

         20  money, their tax dollars, to keep a business in

         21  business to promote gambling even though I

         22  understand you're talking about 1,700 jobs and

         23  families impacted by that.  Some of those are my

         24  constituents, but overall, that's just outrageous

         25  that we have to support gambling.
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          2                 MR. CASEY: Mr. Council Member, people

          3  have been gambling since the 1600's, and they will

          4  continue to gamble.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I play the

          6  lotto myself too, but taxpayers should not have to

          7  pay in order for people to gamble.

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: The Mayor

          9  could not agree more.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm outraged.

         11                 MR. CASEY: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         13  Brewer.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         15  much.  You know last summer on West 72nd Street we

         16  went through a lot, and much thanks to you and to

         17  the workers who participated in many community

         18  discussions.  So I'm familiar with the challenges

         19  because they were brought up then.  My question is

         20  twofold.  First of all, how do some of these other

         21  OTB's in the State lobby with you, or not?  Is there

         22  a general State agreement in terms of what we want

         23  out of Albany, or everybody on their own?

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I think it's

         25  a mix. Everybody is suffering the same level of
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          2  decline in terms of the amount that is taken away

          3  from them for these various distributions.  However,

          4  because of different rent structures, and the way in

          5  which they pay people, they're closer or farther to

          6  the crisis point that we've actually reached.  So I

          7  can't tell you that everyone is completely aligned

          8  in terms of the intensity of their feelings, but

          9  everyone understands that they're extremely

         10  vulnerable and that the trends are terrible.

         11                 MR. CASEY: Ms. Council Member, just

         12  by way of example, I believe it was two years ago

         13   --  it may have been last year  --  that the

         14  Suffolk County Legislature adopted a resolution not

         15  unlike the one that you're talking about here today

         16  that pointed out many of the impact that have

         17  occurred in Suffolk County.  Suffolk County OTB is

         18  another OTB that at this point is at break even, and

         19  so the residents of Suffolk County have realized

         20  that, and their local legislature passed a

         21  resolution, either last year or the year before,

         22  calling on some changes in Albany.  So I just say

         23  that by way of example that other OTB's are being

         24  impacted in a similar, but not the same way as OTB.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The reason I
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          2  say that is, of course, DC 37, to their credit, and

          3  obviously there's a very good president of the

          4  local, they have been in Albany discussing these

          5  issues, and trying to do some systemic changes,

          6  which haven't yet been successful.  Here in New

          7  York, we're dealing with franchises, with Verizon

          8  over the cable.  I'm pretty familiar with them.  So

          9  there is an opportunity there to make some changes.

         10  Is it a situation, because of the franchise issue

         11  that there is some light at the end of the tunnel?

         12                 In other words, in the past, maybe

         13  City government has lobbied, but can tell you that

         14  DC 37 has, and there hasn't been able to be this

         15  kind of change.  So is it the franchise issue that

         16  you think that could generate a more positive

         17  response in Albany?

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I think the

         19  thing that is likely to engender the most positive

         20  response in Albany is the fact that were OTB to go

         21  out of business, the entire racing industry in the

         22  State would suffer.  The State itself would receive

         23  fewer distributions, and therefore, we all are in

         24  this together.  We will all suffer if this problem

         25  is not dealt with.  That is what we really have
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          2  going for us right now.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  Then

          4  just finally, Channel 71 and then 73 Municipal, how

          5  do they bring in revenue, if they do, and are there

          6  any changes?  Obviously I would like my channels

          7  back, but on the other hand, I understand that they

          8  are perhaps revenue positive.

          9                 MR. CASEY: Yes, they are.  They

         10  actually support our account wagering that takes

         11  place at New York City OTB.  It's the way in which

         12  all of the races are seen by our customers.  That

         13  account wagering is currently $220 million of our

         14  billion dollars comes from that particular mechanism

         15  by which people see those particular races.

         16                 I will also tell you that we have

         17  some plans for the future, if there is a future, for

         18  ways in which that channel can be better utilized.

         19  We've changed its production level a lot of the last

         20  couple of years.  Recently, we added a studio at our

         21  offices and tried to produce some original content.

         22  All of the things are done to try to both increase,

         23  handle and reduce some of our costs. So Channel 71

         24  and 73 play a critical role in OTB's future. If,

         25  hopefully, there is a future.
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: However, to

          3  take that one step further to the extent that OTB is

          4  making no money for the City, in fact, it's costing

          5  it money, then a valuable asset like Channel 71,

          6  Channel 73 could be better deployed to other means.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I know.  I

          8  don't want to lose the jobs, and I want to keep OTB.

          9  I'd love to have my channels too, but maybe in

         10  franchise discussions, Deputy Mayor, we could get

         11  some more channels on municipal cable, and then we

         12  wouldn't have this problem.  It's another issue to

         13  discuss.

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Franchises

         15  are coming up.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm very aware

         17  of that.

         18                 Thank you very much.  The only last

         19  question is, God forbid that we do close  --  you

         20  know some of your leases are very valuable.

         21  Obviously the one on 72nd Street must be the top of

         22  that list.  You said you would sublet them, or lease

         23  them.  Are they all very different in terms of their

         24  length and so on?

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Yes, they're
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          2  all very different.  We would have to engage a real

          3  estate consultant who would help us work with the

          4  landlords, help us to sublease, or give up the

          5  leases.  So there will be a very complicated process

          6  dealing with 60 plus  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Expensive,

          8  too.

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, not

         10  necessarily because, as you pointed out, some of

         11  them are leases are significantly below market.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I hope it

         13  doesn't come to that.  Thank you very much.

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: So do we.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         16  Council Member.

         17                 Council Member Alan Gerson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair.

         20                 I'm confident that we all share the

         21  imperative that OTB cannot be allowed to cost the

         22  City funds, and we need to work for a structural

         23  permanent fix, and I commend the Administration for

         24  bringing this crisis to the attention of those who

         25  can act. Certainly, we will work together, I'm
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          2  confident, to resolve the crisis.

          3                 I just would want to note by way of

          4  perspective or context, we've been focusing, as we

          5  should, on the economic implications of OTB's

          6  operation, or lack thereof, and we've been focusing,

          7  of course, on the implications to the employees and

          8  their families who comprise the OTB system.  There

          9  is, of course, an additional broader, if you will,

         10  social context with which we need also to reckon.

         11  OTBs have become part of the social fabric of our

         12  neighborhoods, of our City. They do provide a

         13  service and an important outlet.

         14                 You know, in a previous life, I was

         15  president of a house of worship that was located

         16  three doors from a nearby OTB betting parlor, and

         17  folks would come to services, and then go around

         18  three doors down to place their bets. I'm not quite

         19  sure of the cause and effect, but there was

         20  definitely a beneficial synergistic relationship.

         21                 MR. CASEY: They got some good tips.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: In terms of

         23  attending services, when OTB  --  But at any event,

         24  and on a serious note, we clearly do need to keep

         25  that in mind.  If OTB were to close, the lack of
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          2  that outlet and that service would create

          3  disruptions at kind of a social contextual level as

          4  well.

          5                 So the implication of all this is

          6  that we need to solve the problem, and I just want

          7  to ask two questions along those lines.  First of

          8  all, Mr. Casey, you mentioned that the upcoming

          9  franchise renewal decision, or franchise allotment

         10  decision I should say, would be a logical time to

         11  put in place the fix, if you would, the solution.  I

         12  clearly understand the logic and the politics to

         13  that.  My question though is there a legal

         14  imperative to seizing that moment?  In other words,

         15  do we need to be concerned that if a franchise is

         16  granted without making the structural changes

         17  necessary that the granting of the franchise could

         18  hinder legally making the changes that need to be

         19  made?  Is there anything, in other words, in the

         20  granting of the franchise that would tie the hands

         21  of government thereafter to make these changes?

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I'll go

         23  ahead.  The answer is I don't believe that based on

         24  what we know that the granting of the franchise

         25  would legally inhibit the Legislature from coming
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          2  back later and addressing the issue.  However, we do

          3  believe that once that problem is dealt with,

          4  attention will turn elsewhere, and we simply won't

          5  be able to get the focus on the issue.

          6                 However, the fact that OTB will be

          7  closed down in June will certainly serve to keep

          8  people as focused as possible.

          9                 MR. CASEY: Sometimes fairness doesn't

         10  drive the argument, but somebody, whether it's going

         11  to be NYRA or somebody else  --  it's looking like

         12  it's NYRA  --  is going to have to make decisions

         13  about what it does on a going forward basis whoever

         14  is awarded the franchise.  When we're talking about

         15  an economic restructuring, I think it's fair that

         16  they know what everyone is in for on a going forward

         17  basis.  So I think it's logical that this would be

         18  right time to solve these issues for all the parties

         19  involved.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And certainly

         21  that logic makes perfect sense, and that's a good

         22  segue to the second question.  The racing industry

         23  at its different levels and components, have there

         24  been negotiations, conversations directly with

         25  different components of the industry to get them to
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          2  go along with a common front?  I mean clearly no

          3  matter how well or mismanaged they have been, they

          4  must recognize the reality of the crisis here in New

          5  York City, and clearly they must realize they stand

          6  to lose.  Have there been conversations directly

          7  with them? Have they expressed an opinion on the

          8  structural realignment so that interests, as in a

          9  normal industry, are properly aligned?

         10                 MR. CASEY: There are so many

         11  different components to the racing industry, there

         12  have, in fact, been discussions at one time or

         13  another with all of them, but quite frankly, many of

         14  the folks that are involved in the process are

         15  focused on figuring out whether or not who's going

         16  to get the franchise on a going forward basis.

         17                 Among the parties that have recently

         18   --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: The NYRA

         20  franchise.

         21                 MR. CASEY: The NYRA franchise.  Among

         22  the parties that are going to be impacted in a

         23  significant way are the breeders, and we've had a

         24  lot of conversations.  In fact, they were at our

         25  board meeting.  I think I used in my prepared
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          2  remarks one of the things that those folks told us.

          3  The harness breeding funds will be significantly

          4  impacted, but fundamentally, the way in which this

          5  process has worked is in the last five years I've

          6  met with everybody in the racing industry, but that

          7  doesn't change things in Albany because the racing

          8  law is micro- managed in Albany.  So you know you

          9  can talk all you want to racing interests, but

         10  basically, there's three bodies of government that

         11  ultimately make the decision, and it's most

         12  important to be talking to them.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I understand

         14  that, but if everyone is talking together, if

         15  there's a common front, that could obviously,

         16  politically, have a greater impact.

         17                 Is there any counter- lobbying?  Is

         18  there any group --  It sounds to me like everyone

         19  loses if OTB fails, and we can't go on.  We should

         20  all clearly make the statement that the City cannot

         21  subsidize an activity, an entity, that was designed

         22  to provide economic benefit to the City so if

         23  everyone recognizes that if this is not fixed,

         24  everyone is going to lose.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Think of the
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          2  industry today as a donut.  You know there are all

          3  these different parties who are kind of sprinkled

          4  around it, but at the very center, there is a hole.

          5  The hole is the uncertainty as to who will actually

          6  control that franchise.  So it's very difficult in

          7  the absence of understanding the answer to that to

          8  figure out the rest of it. That's why this presents

          9  such a unique moment.  Because as you're resolving

         10  that question, you have an opportunity to resolve a

         11  lot of the other questions, too.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well I'll be

         13  heading back to the house of worship, and we'll try

         14  in put in a good word to get the problem corrected.

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: That may be

         16  what it needs.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: There you go.

         18                 MR. CASEY: Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         20  Council Member Albert Vann.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: He said Albert.

         22  At least he meant Albert.  I think Gerson probably

         23  hit on it.  We need divine intervention.  If we

         24  don't get that, and I think will all know here that

         25  logic and common sense does not always prevail in
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          2  government. Perhaps you know that better than most,

          3  which leads me to my concern.  In terms of a plan B,

          4  the families involved, those who are employed, and

          5  again, if it does not prevail and you have to close

          6  down the OTB's on June 30th, or whatever, was is the

          7  plan? How are we going to provide for the families

          8  involved?  What's our plan?

          9                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: As Ray

         10  mentioned in his opening remarks, we've begun to

         11  look at that.  We're exploring a number of

         12  possibilities including a severance program,

         13  although we can't commit to it.  A perhaps more

         14  fruitful option is re deployment into other City

         15  agencies.  There are 1,700 employees. We take each

         16  of them to heart, and we have 300,000 City

         17  employees, and so we would really very seriously

         18  think about and aggressive re- deployment program.

         19  We aren't quite at the point of having worked

         20  through all those issues.

         21                 MR. CASEY: Your point is well taken.

         22  Every OTB employee has a whole family that gets

         23  affected by this.  I've met with employees in the

         24  past, and you sit down.  I have employees that have

         25  been there for 34 years, and they got married and
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          2  they met their husband or wives at OTB.  They raised

          3  families, and they put those families through

          4  college on the revenue that they got from OTB, and

          5  working at OTB.  So OTB, as an extended family, is

          6  part of their families, and so this kind of a move

          7  affects everybody.  So when I said to you that it

          8  was a last resort for me, I, for one, and I believe

          9  the Deputy Mayor as well as the Mayor, understand

         10  the severity of what we're talking about.  You

         11  should never think that we enter into it lightly,

         12  but I fundamentally believe that we're at a position

         13  of sort of last resort at this point.  So I will do

         14  everything I can for those employees, if it comes to

         15  that, as I outlined in our plan.  If that means

         16  personally picking up the phone and trying to get

         17  them a job some where else, then I'm going to do

         18  that too, but we're hoping to avoid that in some

         19  way, shape or form.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I think they

         21  would appreciate that sentiment.  I'm sure they

         22  would not want to rely upon that, but we appreciate

         23  that attitude.

         24                 Cutting through all the red tape,

         25  what is Speaker Silver's position on this issue, the
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          2  process and protocol?

          3                 MR. CASEY: I don't know the Speaker's

          4  position on this particular issue.  I mean I think

          5  that that's a better question addressed to the

          6  Speaker.

          7                 I will tell you that the Assembly and

          8  the Senate were engage in conversations with them

          9  every day about these issues.  They have talked

         10  about, and tried to pass laws to help OTB.  So it's

         11  not like they have not tried to do that, but the law

         12  is very, very complex, and many times what happens

         13  in Albany, just like it happens here in the City of

         14  New York, there's a lot of people that are pulling

         15  at the same pot of money.  So priorities have to be

         16  set.

         17                 This should never be this ball of

         18  criticism of any one party in Albany, whether it's

         19  the Speaker, it's the Senate or it's the Governor.

         20  Fundamentally, this racing law, everybody

         21  participated in creating it, and I'm not here to

         22  cast blame on any particular person.  All I'm here

         23  is to highlight the fact that it's broken, and we

         24  all need to work together to get it fixed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I was not about
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          2  casting blame. I'm looking at resolution, how to

          3  solve a problem.  Okay.  All right.  Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          6  Before we let these distinguished witnesses leave,

          7  Council Member Lew Fidler just wanted one brief

          8  clarification, and then we'll be finished with these

          9  witnesses.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman. Council Member Vallone, it seemed,

         12  slightly mischaracterized something that I had said,

         13  and I know that six weeks from now  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: He's not here for

         15  reply.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: No, it's

         17  nothing to be  -- We spoke about it.  Six weeks from

         18  now at 2 o'clock in the morning some people are

         19  going to watch this hearing on t.v., and I want to

         20  be clear that I never, never ever suggested that the

         21  taxpayers of the City of New York subsidize a penny

         22  of the operation of Upstate racing facilities.

         23  They'll be honest harness racing at Monticello

         24  before I would ever support something like that, and

         25  I know it's going to be a long time before that
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          2  happens.  But the point that I was making, I just

          3  want to be very clear about this, is that when you

          4  take the gross distribution revenues to the City,

          5  even at 15 percent, and then subtract our operating

          6  shortfall, we will still be generating $13 million

          7  dollars of revenue to the City of New York's

          8  taxpayers this year.  That's more than the property

          9  tax exemption that we're trying to take away from

         10  Madison Square Garden, as we should, and thanks to

         11  the Daily News, we know just how many hundreds of

         12  teachers, and fire fighters, and cops $13 million

         13  dollars provides a year.  So we'd be cutting off our

         14  nose to spite our face to close down OTB while we

         15  are still net profitable.  When we become net

         16  unprofitable may be a different question.  I, quite

         17  frankly, would oppose closing it down, and if, in

         18  effect, this is a premature bluff, it's very

         19  difficult to run a bluff for a flush when you're

         20  showing three open suites on the table.  I'm sure

         21  that the racing industry understands that we are

         22  still generating a profit at this point.  As long as

         23  we are, I don't think we should be shutting it down

         24  and putting 1,700 families in jeopardy.

         25                 The other point I want to make is I
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          2  wouldn't call racing at this level of profit a

          3  golden goose, but to the extent that they may be

          4  dependent on distribution formulas, I'm concerned to

          5  hear from them as to how dependent they because I

          6  wouldn't want to kill the bronze goose and put the

          7  entire operation out of business.

          8                 Those were the two points I was

          9  making.  I would never ever want New York City tax

         10  money to go any more than it already does to Albany

         11  and outside the City to subsidize the rest of the

         12  State.  So I just want to be clear about that.

         13                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I'm sure

         14  we'll all be setting our Tivo's to Fidler OTB so we

         15  can catch this at 2 in the morning in six weeks.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: We can hope.

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Just to

         18  respond to that, we certainly understand your point.

         19    I do want to point this out just to reiterate

         20  that, no matter what, we see the light in the tunnel

         21  and it's coming at us, and it's going to come at us

         22  no matter what where even after the distribution we

         23  would have to put money in, and that's going to be

         24  by late 2009 or 2010.  It's coming.  We have a

         25  unique window right now with all of the issues with
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          2  respect to the horse racing industry that are front

          3  and center in Albany, and we don't view this as an

          4  idle threat.  This is something we will do in the

          5  event that we cannot get this fundamental

          6  realignment and put this operation on a long- term

          7  road to sustainability in the financial sense.

          8                 MR. CASEY: Mr. Council Member, I will

          9  add that I don't think that's it's prudent to run

         10  OTB down to its last nickel because some of the

         11  things that I said today were that the liquidity

         12  will affect what we can do for the employees.  The

         13  City may have a different position than New York

         14  City OTB may have on this, but I know that if I know

         15  I have to close this down, I would like to have a

         16  little bit of money to be able to put together

         17  packages for my employees.  It is not prudent, in my

         18  opinion, to run this to the last nickel, and so

         19  maybe when there's a little bit of money for the

         20  employees at the table, we'd like to be able to do

         21  it.  If we push this into 2009 or 2010, I couldn't

         22  tell you that I'm going to have a plug nickel left

         23  to be able to try and take care of my employees and

         24  their transition to another job.  So we need to take

         25  care of this now.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Casey, I

          3  understand the issues of cashflow, and I've heard

          4  what you're saying about it so I'm not entirely sure

          5  that OTB kind of operates that way.  So I don't know

          6  if that's an issue, but I know that we have at least

          7  one very smart businessman sitting next to you at

          8  the table, and I'm sure that he would spend $350,000

          9  dollars to preserve a revenue stream for the next

         10  year of $10 million every day of the week.  If I

         11  could do it, I would do it every day of the week,

         12  too, especially when there are 1,700 families that

         13  are at stake.  I take you at your absolute good

         14  faith that you care deeply about them.  Things

         15  happen, and I recognize that there is a moment here

         16  where the entire racing industry is being looked at

         17  in Albany and how it's being constructed, and I do

         18  fully agree with your stated purpose, which is to

         19  make this work and work better for everybody.  I'm

         20  just a little concerned about pushing the

         21  thermonuclear button.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         23  gentlemen, and we hope we'll continue working

         24  together for the appropriate Albany solution, and I

         25  volunteer myself as well as our staff, and I know I
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          2  share the same concern that all our members do in

          3  reaching a amicable, sensible solution Albany-

          4  based.

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Thank you

          6  very much for your attention today.  Now, we're

          7  going to go play Balance of Power on our personal

          8  computers.  Thank you.

          9                 MR. CASEY: Thank you very much.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Don't take

         11  France.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We'll now hear

         13  from Leonard Allen, President of Local 2021 of OTB

         14  employees, along with Wanda Williams from DC 37, if

         15  they could both come up.  Ms. Williams.

         16                 MS. WILLIAMS: Good afternoon.  Thank

         17  you very much for holding this very important

         18  hearing, Chairman Weprin, members of the Finance

         19  Committee.  My name is Wanda Williams.  I am the

         20  Director of Political Action and Legislation for DC

         21  37.  As many of you know, DC 37 is the largest

         22  municipal labor union in New York City representing

         23  over 121,000 members, 50,000 retirees, 56 locals,

         24  1,000 titles and all spectrums of workers from white

         25  collar, blue collar, professional, clerical,
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          2  hospital and school employees.

          3                 Local 2021, New York City Off-Track

          4  Betting Employees is one of DC 37's 56 autonomous

          5  and independent locals that makeup the amalgamation

          6  of DC 37 locals.  Local 2021 represents 1,400 of the

          7  1,700 hard working employees throughout New York

          8  City OTB.

          9                 Since the establishment of OTB, these

         10  employees have provided exemplary service to the

         11  corporation, and have been a part of the success

         12  that OTB has experienced throughout its existence.

         13  They want to continue to be part of providing their

         14  exemplary service to OTB.  This will only occur if

         15  the New York State Legislature takes action and

         16  provides New York City with its fair share of

         17  revenue that OTB generates by changing the current

         18  revenue distribution formula.  To do less will

         19  threaten the very existence of OTB and its ability

         20  to operate.  To continue the disproportionate short-

         21  changing of New York City in the revenue sharing

         22  formula, simply put, amounts to unwise decision-

         23  making.

         24                 For years, DC 37 and 2021 have

         25  enjoyed a very good working relationship with OTB.
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          2  The New York City OTB is unionized and our members

          3  play a very integral part of the operations of OTB.

          4  We want them to be in a position to do so for a very

          5  long time.

          6                 The findings of Comptroller

          7  Thompson's report of July 24th, 2006 found that

          8  OTB's payments to the racing industry and the State

          9  were absorbing a growing portion of its revenues,

         10  squeezing out revenues for the City of New York.

         11  Between Fiscal Years 1997 and 2001, the City

         12  received an average of $11 million dollars in

         13  revenue from OTB.  The number fell to just $1

         14  million in 2002.  The City did not receive any

         15  revenues in Fiscal Year 2003 and Fiscal Year 2005.

         16                 In Fiscal Year 1995, total surcharges

         17  due to the City were 24 percent of statutory

         18  distributions, but by Fiscal Year 2005, those

         19  surcharges due to the City had dropped to 14

         20  percent. Meanwhile, payments to the racing industry

         21  increased from 55 percent of statutory distributions

         22  in Fiscal Year 1995 to 70 percent in Fiscal Year

         23  2005.

         24                 In conclusion, a fair and equitable

         25  solution must be found to make both New York City
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          2  and OTB whole.  To do less amounts to an egregious

          3  action which will only continue to deny New York

          4  City its fair share, threaten the operations of OTB

          5  and potentially mean the loss of jobs for hard

          6  working Local 2021 members who would be the

          7  undeserved inheritors of continued inaction.

          8                 We urge you to urge your colleagues

          9  in Albany to find a workable solution now, not next

         10  month, not next session, now because time is of the

         11  essence and the solution can't wait.

         12                 We thank you for bringing attention

         13  to this most important matter.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Ms.

         15  Williams.  Mr. Allen.

         16                 MR. ALLEN: Thank you, Chairman

         17  Weprin, and my thanks as well to Speaker Quinn, the

         18  members of the Finance Committee, and the Finance

         19  Division staff for allowing me the opportunity to

         20  present my views on the future of New York City

         21  Off-Track Betting. My name is Leonard Allen, and I

         22  am the President of Local 2021, District Council 37

         23  AFSCME representing the 1,400 hard working employees

         24  of OTB.

         25                 I believe that it is important to
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          2  begin my remarks today by reminding everyone that

          3  thanks to the diligence and dedication of the

          4  members of Local 2021, New York City OTB will earn a

          5  $125 million dollar profit this year.  The workers I

          6  represent do a tremendous job, but their livelihoods

          7  are threatened by antiquated State formulas which

          8  require OTB to pay out $134 million to racetracks,

          9  the horse racing industry and government. As a

         10  result of this inequity, Mayor Bloomberg recently

         11  announced plans to shut down OTB at the end of the

         12  current fiscal year.  I sincerely appreciate your

         13  efforts today to shed some light on this issue.

         14                 If it were up to me, this hearing

         15  would have been held in Albany, and not at City

         16  Hall, for it is in Albany that the solution to our

         17  problems lie.  As you have already heard, the

         18  problem with OTB is not that it does not earn money,

         19  but that the State of New York takes more money out

         20  of our operation than is sustainable.

         21                 As a 2006 report by Comptroller

         22  William Thompson found, between our payments to the

         23  various tracks around the State and what the State

         24  siphons off, there's not enough money to make all

         25  the payments required by statute to the City of New
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          2  York. While OTB was founded in part to support

          3  racing, the other part of its mission are to provide

          4  revenues to the City as well as help combat illegal

          5  gambling through bookmakers.

          6                 There is an answer to our problem,

          7  and I will try to keep this simple, although nothing

          8  is simple in government.  The formula by which OTB

          9  revenues are distributed must be changed from one

         10  which is based on our gross revenues to one based on

         11  our net revenues.  As I said before, OTB cannot pay

         12  out more money than it has available to it.  OTB

         13  cannot do this, nor can any other entity which hopes

         14  to function.

         15                 There is a bigger picture that I want

         16  to talk about today.  I am not just here to talk

         17  about the 1,400 jobs of my brothers and sisters at

         18  Local 2021, but I am also here to recognize that

         19  there's nearly 40,000 jobs throughout the State

         20  which are dependent on the future of New York City

         21  OTB.

         22                 As you may know, New York City is the

         23  backbone of the entire racing industry in the State.

         24    Approximately 40 percent of all of the wagering on

         25  racing in New York State is done at New York City
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          2  OTB.  If New York City OTB shuts down, the vast

          3  majority of those bets will disappear, as will the

          4  revenue they provide to support those 40,000 jobs.

          5  In short, if we go out of business, and my members

          6  lose their jobs, they will be quickly followed by

          7  the clerks at Aqueduct, food service workers at

          8  Belmont, and the farmhands at more than a thousand

          9  farms across Upstate New York that are dependent on

         10  the revenue stream that OTB provides.

         11                 It is simply appalling that the State

         12  Legislature has failed to act to protect these jobs

         13  and the future of this industry.  I urge the Council

         14  to join with us and ask your colleagues in state

         15  government to correct his inequitable formula before

         16  it's too late.

         17                 In the past several years, the State

         18  has granted many tracks in this State access to

         19  Video Lottery Terminals and their revenues.  At this

         20  point, nearly every other racing entity in this

         21  State has seen some financial relief from the State

         22  in the past few years except for New York City OTB

         23  and the other regional OTB's.

         24                 Our OTB is not the only one that is

         25  in the precarious position because of unfair
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          2  formula, but I will tell you that no other OTB has

          3  to pay the rents that New York City landlords

          4  charge, and no other OTB is as fully unionized as is

          5  New York City OTB.

          6                 We stand prepared to work with the

          7  Legislature, Governor Spitzer, Mayor Bloomberg and

          8  the Council to fix this problem to benefit all the

          9  racing entities in the State and the tens of

         10  thousands of jobs they support.

         11                 Again, I thank you for your time, and

         12  I would like to once again thank Speaker Quinn,

         13  Chairman Weprin and the Council for calling

         14  attention to this important issue.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.  As

         16  you know based on previous discussions we've had,

         17  and from my opening statement today, I'm fully in

         18  agreement with everything you've said, and I think

         19  actually this is a very unique hearing so far in

         20  that I think both the Administration as well as the

         21  union, as well as the Council seem to be on the same

         22  page.  So what I would like to do is get everyone

         23  involved in the overall effort, including the

         24  Administration, in lobbying in Albany and doing what

         25  we have to do over the next few months.  Obviously,
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          2  December is a slow time, but certainly starting in

          3  January, when the Legislature is back in full swing,

          4  when all these discussions are taking place now

          5  about the overall racing industry and NYRA's future,

          6  I think there is a window of opportunity here to

          7  really work together, and you have my full support.

          8  I know my colleagues feel the same way, and we look

          9  forward to working with you on that.

         10                 MR. ALLEN: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I believe Council

         12  Member Fidler had a question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.

         14  Obviously, I agree with the statement of the

         15  Chairman that we clearly need a resolution to this

         16  problem that gives New York City OTB a fair share of

         17  the revenue that it is, in fact, generating so it

         18  can be sustainable. I was just wondering how you

         19  feel as the representative of the 1,400 families

         20  that work with OTB given the fact that even with the

         21  presentation of Deputy Mayor Doctoroff that OTB will

         22  continue to generate in excess of $10 million

         23  dollars for the taxpayers of the City of New York

         24  through at least 2009 the threat of closing you down

         25  in June of 2008, and to use your families as cannon
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          2  fodder in this war whether you think it is the

          3  appropriate thing for the Administration to be doing

          4  in an attempt to try and get this resolution.

          5                 MR. ALLEN: Yes, I do.  Let me say

          6  this to you.  I have to agree that you don't take

          7  this corporation down to the last nickel before you

          8  start putting together a plan that's going to

          9  provide my members with the opportunity to retire,

         10  to get a severance package, to have re- deployment.

         11  That money has to come from someplace.  Okay?  I

         12  think it's understood that the City is not going to

         13  provide that money.  So yes, I would think that they

         14  should get an early start.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: But if I

         16  understand Mr. Casey correctly that the cashflow of

         17  OTB wouldn't allow them to do that anyway, what he

         18  is saying is that by June of 2008 when they will

         19  close down, they will have a $350,000 dollar revenue

         20  shortfall.  So that that money wouldn't be available

         21  within the OTB corporation anyway.

         22                 We all know that things happen, and

         23  projections are projections.  I'm not suggesting for

         24  a second that the Deputy Mayor's projections are

         25  incorrect, but would you not be better off with,
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          2  would your working men and women not be better off,

          3  to allow them to continue to work for a year, or a

          4  year and a half after that, while this corporation

          5  was generating a profit rather than put your workers

          6  out on the street, or attempt to redeploy them to

          7  jobs that they are unfamiliar with knowing that even

          8  at June 2008 if they cease operations they don't

          9  have money in the corporation to provide severance.

         10                 MR. ALLEN: Certainly, the way you put

         11  it, yes, but also I think that what my members need

         12  is to be able to go to bed at night and sleep

         13  soundly knowing that they have a job tomorrow, not

         14  knowing that even though it's not going to happen in

         15  June of 2008, perhaps January of 2009.  You know

         16  what I'm saying?  We don't need that type of

         17  situation either, Councilman.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: There's no

         19  question about that, and clearly, as with any

         20  company, and I have had the unfortunate circumstance

         21  that were in economic distress, and I know what it

         22  is to come in every day and not be sure if the

         23  parent company was going to come in and say you're

         24  all out of here.  It's a horrible, horrible feeling.

         25    It's just my sense, and perhaps you differ that
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          2  the Bloomberg Administration, by taking this

          3  particular approach, has hung sort of over your head

          4  prematurely, that June 2008 is not the magic moment

          5  and that there's very little advantage to your

          6  membership, or to the taxpayers of the City, by

          7  doing that if we are still generating in excess of

          8  $10 million which can be done only by continuing to

          9  operate.  If they stop operating, the money is gone.

         10    They're telling us that in June 2008, when they're

         11  going to pull the plug on you, they're going to be

         12  at minus $358,000 dollars.

         13                 MR. ALLEN: I understand that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.  Thank

         15  you.

         16                 MS. WILLIAMS: If I could  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The light has to

         18  be off to be on.

         19                 MS. WILLIAMS: Okay.  Thank you.  If I

         20  could just add to what was said in terms of the

         21  specific time line, as many of you know, the State

         22  Legislature is planning on coming back on one of

         23  three days this month.  It is not certain if in fact

         24  they will be doing that.  We think the issue, or

         25  three issues, that they're considering coming back
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          2  that this one is one of importance that needs to be

          3  taken up.  So we would like to ask, as you have

          4  said, for the next session, we would like to work

          5  for this session to have a united front there to

          6  come to a resolution because we don't want to get to

          7  the point that in June we will be facing this issue,

          8  or our members will be facing the issue.  It's one

          9  of a budget in which in the City has said for your

         10  budget cycle, it won't happen on the City's dime,

         11  and the Governor has said with his $4.3 billion

         12  deficit, that it's something that is going to

         13  difficult to do, and so we want to be ahead of the

         14  curve and try to make sure that there's some

         15  solution that could be done this special session.

         16  So we'd encourage you to work with us to do that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I made my prior

         18  statement to say that we're available, and I'm

         19  available in December, but again, if not December,

         20  then certainly January.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Ms. Williams,

         22  I just want to say that first in the interest of

         23  compassion for the people who are working at OTB I

         24  think we should try to get Albany to address this in

         25  December and not next session.  As I said, I know
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          2  exactly how it feels not to know if the plug is

          3  going to get pulled on your company.  Every day that

          4  you walk in, it's incredibly stressful on people,

          5  and it's not a good way to run a business either.

          6  So it makes sense on all levels, and hopefully

          7  Albany will understand that, but when you talk about

          8  the City is not going to let this operation on its

          9  dime, and it should not, the fact of the matter is

         10  that in this budget that the Mayor is preparing,

         11  when he prepares to close OTB, he is going to have

         12  to lose $10 to $13 million dollars from his budget.

         13  The problem I have with that is one, that pays for a

         14  lot of City services, two, it closes your doors

         15  prematurely, and three, no matter how much we like

         16  to laugh about it, Albany is not stupid either and

         17  understands that.  So we are, in fact, suggesting

         18  something, running a bluff, that is not only causing

         19  angst for your workers, but is not terribly credible

         20  in terms of we'd be cutting off our nose to spite

         21  our face.

         22                 So I'm ready, willing and able to

         23  work with you, and with the Administration, in any

         24  way possible to get Albany to focus on this sooner

         25  rather than later to come to an equitable solution.
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          2  I'm just questioning the strategy by which it is

          3  being approached.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          5  Council Member Jackson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair.  Good afternoon, President Allen and

          8  Wanda.  Let me thank you for coming in.  Always, I

          9  want to hear the prospective of the employees and

         10  their representatives.  You were sitting when I

         11  expressed my feelings about the situation.  It is

         12  outrageous, and so let me pledge to you that

         13  anything that I can do as a Council Member

         14  representing northern Manhattan, please let me know

         15  so that I can join with you in trying to resolve

         16  this particular matter.

         17                 MR. ALLEN: Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: President

         19  Allen, you had mentioned in your testimony that OTB

         20  will earn $125 million dollars profit this year.  Is

         21  OTB on a fiscal year, or a calendar year? Because as

         22  Lew just talked about, Dan Doctoroff and Mr. Casey

         23  indicated that the end of Fiscal '08, which I

         24  believe is June 30th of '08, you're going to have a

         25  deficit of approximately $350,000 dollars.  So I'm a
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          2  little confused as to the numbers, and whether or

          3  not we're talking about fiscal year or calendar year

          4  as to the $125 million.

          5                 MR. ALLEN: I believe we're talking

          6  about fiscal year.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So the end of

          8  Fiscal Year '08 you say that they're going to have

          9  $125 million dollar profit?

         10                 MR. ALLEN: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's before the

         12  distribution to the State, to NYRA and to the

         13  racetracks.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Oh, well

         15  because I just think that we have to be talking on

         16  the same level because when you say a profit of $125

         17  million, I make the assumption that's after

         18  everything  --  You've paid all your bills and you

         19  have a profit.

         20                 MR. ALLEN: No.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Because if

         22  you haven't paid your bills, then in my opinion as a

         23  layperson, there's no profit.

         24                 MR. ALLEN: Right.  Exactly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, in
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          2  essence, your saying that before they pay bills  --

          3  if they did not have to pay any bills you're saying.

          4                 MR. ALLEN: Right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Let me just

          6  understand.  If they didn't have to pay any bills,

          7  they'd have a $125 million dollar profit.

          8                 MR. ALLEN: Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But when they

         10  pay their bills, they're going to be in the red.

         11                 MR. ALLEN: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  I'm

         13  just saying overall that when somebody reads this,

         14  and reads $125 million dollar profit  --

         15                 MR. ALLEN: I understand.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That's

         17  confusing, very confusing.  Anyway, I just wanted to

         18  be aligned.  I want to be in sync with you, and with

         19  the agency OTB with respect to that there's going to

         20  be a deficit at the end of Fiscal Year '08, which

         21  ends June 30th of 2008.  Isn't that correct?

         22                 MR. ALLEN: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'll just say

         24  that I make the assumption that all of the members

         25  that you're representing, the 1,400 workers, are
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          2  communicating with their elected officials at every

          3  level in order to ensure, from a political action

          4  point of view, that they are lobbying the Speaker of

          5  the State Assembly, Sheldon Silver, and the Majority

          6  Leader, Joe Bruno and the Governor with respect to

          7  that their livelihood is at stake as a result of,

          8  basically, New York OTB being ripped off  --  my

          9  words, not anyone else's  --  ripped off by the

         10  fees, and more fees and distribution formulas that

         11  have  been set, not by OTB, but by NYRA and the

         12  State Legislature, and whatever other organizations

         13  that oversee OTB, and that a formula short- term and

         14  long- term must be worked out.

         15                 MR. ALLEN: We are lobbying for that

         16  aggressively.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  Well

         18  anything that I can do, please let me know.

         19                 MR. ALLEN: I appreciate that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         23  Council Member. Thank you, Ms. Williams.  Thank you,

         24  Mr. Allen.  We know that your always accessible, and

         25  that you'll be available if we have any other
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          2  questions as time goes on.

          3                 Excuse me.  I apologize.  Council

          4  Member Gale Brewer had a question to ask.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Very quick.

          6  I'm always very quick.  My question is when I asked

          7  the Deputy Mayor what's the difference because I

          8  pointed out that in Albany you've been working very

          9  hard on this issue for a very long time, and we're

         10  sort of saying he's a little Johnny come lately, but

         11  the fact of the matter is you have done this.  He

         12  said the difference now  --  I don't know if he was

         13  saying that it was mostly that there is such an

         14  impact on the entire system.  It's obviously A to Z

         15  will be impacted if OTB is not here.  He didn't seem

         16  to indicate it was the franchise issue.  I'm just

         17  wondering, very quickly, do you see that there are

         18  other issues that could be in our favor in Albany?

         19  He seemed to think that the other OTB's in the state

         20  would not be particularly helpful one way or the

         21  other.

         22                 MR. ALLEN: Let me just say this.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Don't talk too

         24  long because I'll get in trouble with my Chairman.

         25                 MR. ALLEN: Listen, Councilwoman,
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          2  first of all, thank you for everything you've done

          3  in the past.  I personally believe that perhaps it

          4  might even take a special formula for New York City

          5  OTB's in Albany that don't include the rest because

          6  I think that our problems here are vastly different

          7  from the rest.  I mean with the high rents, with the

          8  decent salaries.  So maybe we need some type of a

          9  special deal, if possible.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.  The

         13  next witness, and I believe the last witness  --  If

         14  there's anybody else that wants to testify that

         15  hasn't signed up, speak now.  Other than that, we're

         16  going to hear from John Rose, who is the senior

         17  partner and Managing Director of the Boston

         18  Consulting Group.

         19                 MR. ROSE: Thank you for inviting me

         20  to speak today. My name is John Rose.  I'm a senior

         21  partner and Managing Director at the Boston

         22  Consulting Group, and as I think both the Deputy

         23  Mayor Dan Doctoroff and Ray Casey indicated, we did

         24  some work looking at New York OTB approximately a

         25  year ago.  The purpose of our project, which was an
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          2  outside and objective look at OTB, was to understand

          3  what opportunities there were to improve performance

          4  with the widest scope of opportunity meaning you

          5  guys take a look at us.  We'll open our books, and

          6  you help us understand what, if anything, we should

          7  be doing differently.

          8                 We conducted that work over the

          9  course of a three to five month period, and looked

         10  not just at the New York OTB organization itself,

         11  but the broader structure of racing in New York

         12  State, as well as the structure and evolution of

         13  racing in other states in the United States and

         14  outside the United States so that we looked, I

         15  think, pretty far and wide to try to find

         16  alternative ways people are running these types of

         17  organizations and enterprises.

         18                 I think most of the financial

         19  information that we developed through the course of

         20  our project has been eluded to so I won't spend much

         21  of your time going through it, although I'd be happy

         22  to in response to questions.  Basically, I think

         23  what we found is an organization that is facing a

         24  slow, and an execrable structural crisis.  The

         25  combination of the relative flatness of the interest
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          2  of horse wagering in New York State, but quite

          3  frankly, more broadly across the United States,

          4  coupled with the fundamental change in the

          5  distribution structure, has led a business to a

          6  point at which our projections are that it is not

          7  sustainable.  That's with or without the New York

          8  City payments.

          9                 The underlying reality of the

         10  business is that it is slowly going out of business,

         11  and there is pretty much nothing that it can do

         12  within the context of its existing operations that

         13  will change the nature of that.

         14                 We did look extensively at

         15  opportunities to attract more consumers,

         16  opportunities to restructure costs, opportunities

         17  associated with the internet, and what I can say is

         18  that while there are always opportunities to improve

         19  the performance of businesses, the opportunities to

         20  improve the performance of OTB from a pure

         21  operations standpoint is on the order of five or six

         22  percent of their total cost base, which is nowhere

         23  near the amount you would need to solve the deficit

         24  problems that are coming.  The internet is both an

         25  opportunity on one hand, and it's a threat on the
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          2  other.

          3                 The reality of the five different

          4  OTB's all going to market separately from each other

          5  in what is essentially an integrated single format

          6  form, where there is many examples of winner take

          7  all winners, in a world where there are also

          8  nationwide competitors who are coming into New York

          9  to compete for wagering actually bodes ill for the

         10  health of New York OTB even beyond the current

         11  projections that we're seeing.  Meaning that those

         12  entities will come in, they will take significant

         13  portion of the handle under the best of

         14  circumstances, and that will be handle revenue that

         15  is not available to New York OTB, and by the way,

         16  does not have the payouts to NYRA and the New York

         17  State that are equal to the payout that New York OTB

         18  has.  So they will worsen not only the economics of

         19  New York OTB, but they'll worsen the economics of

         20  everybody in the value chain.

         21                 I think the reality is that our

         22  belief based on the work we've done and a broad

         23  exploration of alternative models is that this like

         24  other industries at other points in time, an

         25  industry whose industry structure is broken, and it
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          2  needs to be fixed.  This is not different than the

          3  structure of the newspaper industry right now, and

          4  when you read about what's happening to well

          5  structured, well run organizations that have just

          6  run out of steam.  The issue here is there is not

          7  much more costs to cut, there's not much more

          8  revenue opportunity, and that revenue opportunity

          9  and cost opportunity that is available will be

         10  available over a slow five- year period of time, and

         11  the organization doesn't have the time to even

         12  pursue those opportunities.  So fixing the

         13  underlying structure of this industry is an

         14  underlying and critical necessity in order to give

         15  New York OTB the chance to even pursue the

         16  opportunities that we found.

         17                 I do think that this whole

         18  opportunity around video lottery terminals,

         19  regardless of what term one applies to them, is in

         20  fact a windfall amount of economic profit that comes

         21  into the industry.  Although under the current

         22  structure, none of it goes to the OTB's.  So the

         23  underlying reality is if you look at the size of the

         24  current residuals before distribution to anyone,

         25  including NYRA and other places, those residuals
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          2  triple depending on the extent of the deployment of

          3  VLT's.  Under the current model, all of that

          4  incremental value will accrue to folks outside of

          5  the OTB framework, and quite frankly, under a

          6  restructured model, there are plenty of ways to make

          7  that work in a way that puts more money into the

          8  State's pockets, solve the NYRA issues and also

          9  allows all five OTB's to operate in a profitable

         10  manner.

         11                 So with that very brief overview,

         12  since I know it's been long and you've heard lots of

         13  testimony, I'll just respond to questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I appreciate

         15  that.  We have a copy of your report.  We have the

         16  executive summary.  We may have some follow- up

         17  questions now that we're actively looking at that.

         18                 When were you first hired?  How long

         19  did it take? Who hired you, and what was the process

         20  of your hiring?

         21                 MR. ROSE: It was a competitive bid

         22  process orchestrated by the EDC like they do in

         23  multiple situations.  I have no idea how many

         24  different consultant firms we competed with, but it

         25  was a multi- round competitive proposal in which we
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          2  had a series of interviews, we wrote an initial

          3  proposal, we had a meeting, we revised that

          4  proposal, and we were selected.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: When were you

          6  selected?

          7                 MR. ROSE: I'd have to check the exact

          8  dates, but I believe the work started over the

          9  summer of '06 and concluded in the late fall,

         10  November or December time frame, of '06.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Did you have an

         12  all- in fee, or was it by an hourly basis?  How were

         13  you paid?

         14                 MR. ROSE: We structured  --  We

         15  agreed with the EDC that it would be an all- in fee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And what was that

         17  all- in fee?

         18                 MR. ROSE: Honestly, I'd actually have

         19  to check.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Approximately.

         21                 MR. ROSE: It was approximately

         22  $800,000 or $900,000 dollars.  I'm not being vague.

         23  It was a year and a half ago.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's fine.  I

         25  was thinking millions.  So  --
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          2                 MR. ROSE: Fortunately for the City,

          3  and potentially less so for us, it was under a

          4  million dollars.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.  That's

          6  fine.  I assume you're located in Boston.

          7                 MR. ROSE: No, we're located in New

          8  York at 430 Park Avenue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Is there a

         10  headquarters in Boston?

         11                 MR. ROSE: We have an administrative

         12  center in Boston, but as a global partnership, we

         13  actually elect our CEO every three years from the

         14  partners at large.  Our current CO resides in

         15  Germany, and so we have an administrative

         16  headquarters, but not what you'd think of as a

         17  corporate headquarters.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: How many

         19  employees do you have in New York City?

         20                 MR. ROSE: We must have  -- again,

         21  rough figures  -- probably on the order of 700 or

         22  800.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I believe Council

         24  Member Brewer had a question.

         25                 By the way, before I get to Council
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          2  Member Brewer, I assume you agree with  --  You've

          3  been here all morning, early afternoon, whatever?

          4                 MR. ROSE: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I assume you

          6  agree with what everybody seems to be on the same

          7  page that the solution to solving New York City

          8  OTB's problem is changing the Albany structure

          9  whether it be based on net profit distribution as

         10  opposed to gross profit or handle, but certainly

         11  that the solution lies in changing the dynamics

         12  where NYRA and the tracks and the State get more

         13  money than OTB has.

         14                 MR. ROSE: I'm sure there are many

         15  ways to cut the pies and come up with a specific

         16  solution, but when you have an organization that has

         17  a 50 percent operating margin that gives away more

         18  than 51 percent of its revenues, or 52 percent of

         19  its revenues, you can't fix that other than fixing

         20  the fundamental structure of its distribution.  We

         21  tried, as I think the Deputy Mayor said.  There were

         22  no preconceived notions when we came in, and we

         23  looked at can you close tons of branches, can you

         24  restructure the branch network.  We looked at all

         25  sorts of opportunities to try to improve the margin
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          2  so you could recover $10, $20, $30 million dollars

          3  to keep these guys in business, and the answer was

          4  the opportunities are small.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Actually, let me

          6  ask you another question.  There was some talk early

          7  on.  It's not being talked about now, which I'm

          8  happy to hear, about privatizing OTB, or selling

          9  OTB.  If it was sold or privatized, wouldn't they

         10  have the same problem with the distribution, and

         11  wouldn't that be a fundamental problem that would

         12  have to be resolved before OTB really became a

         13  marketable entity?

         14                 MR. ROSE: Like many people who work

         15  in New York City, I do business with a private

         16  equity industry, and I run BCG's North American

         17  private equity practice.  It would be hard for me to

         18  understand, based on the economics that I've seen,

         19  unless there was some fundamental change in

         20  distribution, or some fundamental asset that one

         21  could monetize like the track assets, why anyone

         22  would invest in OTB as a current operation.  There's

         23  just no way to fix it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Very good.

         25  Council Member Brewer.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          3  much.  I was just interested when you talked about

          4  the internet because I do Chair the Technology

          5  Committee, and it's something that I know something

          6  about.  When you said five different OTB's going to

          7  market, if you could describe how that could be

          8  fixed.

          9                 Then second, when you said that the

         10  horse industry is declining.  There are other

         11  competitors.  I was just wondering when you say

         12  international competitors if that was other

         13  industries or just generally competitors.  Those are

         14  my two questions.

         15                 MR. ROSE: Answering your second

         16  question first, as a way of identifying ideas and

         17  seeing what you might do to improve the performance

         18  of New York OTB, we looked at betting within the

         19  United States in places like Maryland, California

         20  and Florida as well as Canada, North American, but

         21  we also looked at Australia and France where there

         22  is a healthy and vibrant horse wagering industry and

         23  where, in fact, handles have been increasing to see

         24  what it is that they have been doing in those

         25  markets.  In fact, we took some ideas from those
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          2  markets that we actually think will make a

          3  difference in New York.  Having said that, they will

          4  take three to five years to get into the

          5  marketplace.  They will require investment in

          6  fixtures and infrastructure.  They will require

          7  access to locations that will have to go through

          8  community planning board processes, and while

          9  ultimately they will have some incremental value,

         10  they don't change the answer.  That's just an

         11  indication of how far did we go.  So we looked at

         12  all sorts of different retail- based betting models.

         13  We looked at the U.K., as well.

         14                 In terms of your first question, as

         15  anybody who spends anytime on the internet space

         16  knows, it is a movement to aggregated content.  So

         17  players like Yahoo beat people like my independent

         18  portal site, and brands matter quite a lot.  You

         19  have two or three national players in the internet

         20  gambling space who are effectively controlling most

         21  of the internet wagering that exists in the United

         22  States.  Several of them actually are integrated

         23  with the companies that provide the tote services

         24  that the different New York OTB's and other

         25  pari-mutuel betting societies use.
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          2                 The issue for New York and I think

          3  this was the subject of a release that the Deputy

          4  Mayor and Mayor made some time in October or

          5  November of '06.  The issue is that each of the five

          6  will all go to market as NOTB.  There will be five

          7  sites, with five URL's, with five amounts of

          8  marketing and promotion and traffic driving dollars

          9  that will be fragmented as opposed to pooled.  All

         10  of the investment in platform for this market will

         11  be wasted by a factor of five, and quite frankly,

         12  the quality of the experience won't be as good as if

         13  one group had spent twice as much as five groups

         14  spending an equal amount.  So the underlying reality

         15  is you'll have five organizations that will all have

         16  an OTB brand, which will fragment the OTB community,

         17  and make it easier for the folks who plow nine, ten,

         18  fifteen percent of their revenues into marketing to

         19  capture a much larger share of the New York gambling

         20  market.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So what you're

         22  saying is in addition to all the funding issues that

         23  need to be sustainable, so should the internet be

         24  sustainable, and you have to think about that as

         25  you're proceeding.
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          2                 MR. ROSE: I also believe that if you

          3  fix the distribution issue, and you create aligned

          4  interests between the tracks, the racing association

          5  and the people who are managing the wagering, that

          6  these are all issues that any enterprise can work

          7  out.  The reality is that there is more than enough

          8  money in the system if you add the revenue stream

          9  for video lottery terminals to make this thing work

         10  and be good for everyone.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.  Thank

         12  you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Rose.

         15                 Before we adjourn, I'd like to read

         16  into the record a statement of Joint Council 16,

         17  International Brotherhood of Teamsters, and

         18  testimony submitted by Gary Barbara (phonetic),

         19  President of the Teamsters Joint Council 16, and

         20  also President of the New York City Central Labor

         21  Council.

         22                 On behalf of 120,000 workers, working

         23  men and women in the greater New York area,

         24  including Off-Track Betting corporation, supervisors

         25  and managers and IBT Local 858, I would like to
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          2  submit the following recommendations for revenue

          3  distribution.

          4                 Revenue distributions are the problem

          5  for all Off Track Betting corporations in the State

          6  of New York.  In New York City, the problem becomes

          7  more magnified due to real estates costs. While such

          8  costs are down throughout most of the nation, they

          9  continue to rise in New York City, the greatest city

         10  in the world.

         11                 In private industry, distributions

         12  are made after operating expenses are deducted.  The

         13  OTB's, however, are required to make distributions

         14  to the State and racing industry based on gross

         15  handle, which of course includes their operating

         16  expenses.

         17                 For years, OTB has been trying to

         18  fight the unfairness of this method.  Please join us

         19  in this fight.  Thank you for your time and

         20  consideration.

         21                 Other than that, we are now

         22  adjourned.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 1:55 p.m.)

         24
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